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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Members of Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery Private Limited 

  

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 
 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery 

Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow 

Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements 

that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 

comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 

AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 

matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 

Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with 

the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified 

under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

are free from material misstatement.  

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control 

relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting 

estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind 

AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

 

 

 

 



 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 

the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its loss including other comprehensive 

income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

 

Other Matter 

 

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, included in these 

Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an 

unmodified opinion with an emphasis of matter on those statements on May 25, 2017. 

 

 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of Sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the 

Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  

 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books; 

 

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 

Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report 

are in agreement with the books of account; 

 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, as amended;  

 

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure 2” to this report; 

 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 

position; 

 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

 



 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

 

 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

per Sunil Gaggar 

Partner 

Membership Number: 104315 

Place of Signature: Bengaluru 

Date: May 09, 2018 

 

 



 

Annexure 1 referred to in clause 1 of paragraph on the report on other legal and regulatory 

requirements of our report of even date 

 

Re: Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery Private Limited 

 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of property, plant and equipment. Additionally, the Management are in the 

process of updating the property, plant and equipment register by specific identification of the assets 

(e.g. by tagging); 

 

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the Management during the year but there is 

a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 

the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 

verification. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, there are no 

immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, 

the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(ii) The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the 

year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. 

 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 

secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in 

the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions 

of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 

commented upon. 

  

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, 

investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of Section 185 and 186 

of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon. 

 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable. 

 

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the 

maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the 

products/services of the Company.  

 

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income-tax, 

sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess 

and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities 

though there has been slight delays in a few cases. 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 

respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of 

custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were 

outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became 

payable. 

 



 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, 

sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been 

deposited on account of any dispute.  

 

(viii) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues from any financial institution or 

bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the year. 

 

(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, the Company has not 

raised any money way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and 

term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not 

commented upon. 

  

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 

financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the Management, 

we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees 

of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

 

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, there are no transactions 

on which the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are applicable and hence 

reporting under clause 3(xi) is not applicable and hence not commented upon.  

 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, transactions with the 

related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where 

applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by 

the applicable accounting standards.  

 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 

balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 

or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and hence, reporting requirements under 

clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.  

 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, the Company has not 

entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in 

Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. 

 

       For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP  

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 

 

 

 

per Sunil Gaggar 

Partner  

Membership number: 104315 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 09, 2018 



 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NILGIRI’S MECHANISED BAKERY PRIVATE LIMTED  

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery Private 

Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 

Companies Act, 2013.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified 

under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error.  

  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 



 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP  

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004  

 

 

 

______________________________ 

per Sunil Gaggar 

Partner 

Membership Number: 104315 

Place of Signature: Bengaluru 

Date: May 09, 2018 



Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2018 INR in lakhs

Notes  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 152 196

Capital work-in-progress 4.1                                               -   4

Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets 6 4 3

Income tax assets (net) 26 5 1

Other non-current assets 7                                               -   8

161 212

Current assets

Inventories 8                                               -   129

Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 9 42 1

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 0 14

(iii) Investments 5 3 3

(iv) Other financial assets 6                                               -   7

Other current assets 7 4 22

49 176

Total assets 210 388

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital 11 14 14

Other equity 12 (198)                                      (61)                                         

Total equity (184)                                     (47)                                        

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13 111 98

(ii) Other financial liabilities 15 11                                               -   

Provisions 14                                               -   20

Other non-current liabilities 17 17                                               -   

139 118

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13 104                                               -   

(ii) Trade payables 16 10 188

(iii) Other financial liabilities 15 136 103

Provisions 14                                               -   9

Other current liabilities 17 5 17

255 317

Total liabilities 394 435

Total equity and liabilities 210 388

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

ICAI firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U85110MH1988PTC265435

per Sunil Gaggar Ashok Kumar Matolia Seshadri Gopalan

Partner Director Director

Membership number: 104315 DIN: 01881881 DIN:06729585

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 09, 2018 Date: May 09, 2018 Date: May 09, 2018

Nimalan James

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 09, 2018



Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 INR in lakhs

Notes  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Revenue from operations 18 1,433                            1,823                            

Other income 19 5                                     6                                     

Total income 1,438                           1,829                           

Expenses

Cost of raw materials and components consumed 20 904                                1,159                            

Changes in inventories of finished goods 21 8                                     8                                     

Excise duty on sale of goods 11                                  67                                  

Employee benefits expense 22 263                                310                                

Depreciation expense 23 80                                  64                                  

Finance costs 24 14                                  33                                  

Other expenses 25 286                                366                                

Total expenses 1,566                           2,007                           

Loss before tax (128)                             (178)                             

Tax expenses 26                                       -                                         -   

Loss after tax (128)                             (178)                             

Other comprehensive income (OCI) 27

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (31)                                                                     (5)

Income tax  relating to above                                       -                                         -   

Total other comprehensive income (31)                                                                    (5)

Total comprehensive loss for the year(comprising loss and 

OCI for the year)

(159)                             (183)                             

Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each) 28

(91)                                 (197)                              

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

ICAI firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U85110MH1988PTC265435

per Sunil Gaggar Ashok Kumar Matolia Seshadri Gopalan

Partner Director Director

Membership number: 104315 DIN: 01881881 DIN: 06729585

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 09, 2018 Date: May 09, 2018 Date: May 09, 2018

Nimalan James

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 09, 2018

 -Basic and Diluted (in Rs.)



Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018 INR in lakhs

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year                        (128)                        (178)

Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:

Provision for expected credit loss                                -                               2 

Finance costs (including fair value changes in financial instruments)                             14 33                            

Finance income                             (1)                                - 

Fair value changes in equity instrument                               1                             (1)

(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment                               2                             (1)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment                             80 64                            

Share-based payment expense                             22 18                            

                         (10) (63)                        

Movements in working capital:

(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables                          (41)                             (1)

(Increase) / decrease in inventories                          129                          (17)

(Increase) / decrease in other assets                             25                          (12)

(Decrease) / increase in trade payables                        (178)                          (83)

(Decrease) / increase in provisions                          (29)                             (1)

(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities                             18                          (68)

Cash used in operations                          (86)                       (245)

Income taxes paid                             (4)                                - 

Net cash used in operating activities (A)                          (90)                       (245)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress 

and capital advances)

                         (27)                          (51)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment                                - 6                              

Net cash used in investing activities (B)                          (27)                          (45)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Company                                -                          325 

Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)                          104                                - 

Interest paid                             (1)                          (22)

Net cash generated from financing activities (C)                          103                          303 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)                          (14)                            14 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                             14                                - 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0                            14 

Components of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement:

INR in lakhs

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

0 14                            

Cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement (refer note 10) 0 14                           

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Ind AS  financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

ICAI firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U85110MH1988PTC265435

per Sunil Gaggar Ashok Kumar Matolia Seshadri Gopalan

Partner Director Director

Membership number: 104315 DIN: 01881881 DIN: 06729585

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 09, 2018 Date: May 09, 2018 Date: May 09, 2018

Nimalan James

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 09, 2018

Particulars

Balances with banks 

 - On current account



Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

Notes

a. Equity share capital 11 INR in lakhs

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed & fully paid

Balance at April 1, 2016 9

Issue of share capital 5                                          

Balance at March 31, 2017 14

Issue of share capital                                          -   

Balance at March 31, 2018 14

b. Other equity 12 INR in lakhs

Securities premium 

reserve

Retained earnings Employee stock 

options outstanding

Balance at March 31, 2016                                      917                                          -                                 (1,307)                                          -                                      (390)

Loss for the year                                          -                                            -                                      (178)                                          -                                      (178)

Other comprehensive income for the year                                          -                                            -                                           (5)                                          -                                           (5)

Total comprehensive loss for the year                                          -                                            -                                     (183)                                          -                                     (183)

Issue of equity shares                                          -                                        495                                          -                                            -                                        495 

Share-based payments                                          -                                            -                                            -                                           18                                         18 

Balance at March 31, 2017                                      917                                      495                               (1,491)                                        18                                      (61)

Loss for the year                                          -                                            -                                      (128)                                          -                                      (128)

Other comprehensive income for the year                                          -                                            -                                        (31)                                          -                                        (31)

Total comprehensive loss for the year                                          -                                            -                                     (159)                                          -                                     (159)

Share-based payments                                          -                                            -                                            -                                           22                                         22 

Balance at March 31, 2018                                      917                                      495                               (1,650)                                        40                                   (198)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

ICAI firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U85110MH1988PTC265435

per Sunil Gaggar Ashok Kumar Matolia Seshadri Gopalan

Partner Director Director

Membership number: 104315 DIN: 01881881 DIN: 06729585

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 09, 2018 Date: May 09, 2018 Date: May 09, 2018

Nimalan James

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 09, 2018

Total equityEquity component of 

compound financial 

instrument

Reserve & surplus



Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note	1:	Corporate	information	
	

Nilgiri’s	Mechanised	Bakery	Private	Limited	(“the	Company”)	was	incorporated	on	September	22,	1988	as	a	private	limited	
company	under	the	Companies	Act,	1956.	The	registered	office	of	the	Company	is	at	Knowledge	House,	Shyam	Nagar,	Off.	
Jogeshwari	Vikhroli	Link	Road,	Jogeshwari	(East),	Mumbai	-	400	060.	The	Company	is	primarily	engaged	in	manufacturing	
and	distribution	of	confectionery,	bakery	and	milk	products.	The	Nilgiri	Dairy	Farm	Private	Limited	is	the	Holding	Company	
(‘the	Holding	Company’)	and	Future	Consumer	Limited	is	the	Ultimate	Holding	Company	(‘the	Ultimate	Holding	Company’).			
	
Effective	 January	 1,	 2018,	 the	 Company	 has	 entered	 into	 a	 business	 conduct	 agreement	 with	 Galaxy	 Entertainment	
Corporation	Limited	(GECL)	for	transfer	of	operations,	whereby	allowing	GECL	to	undertake	and	conduct	the	operations	of	
manufacturing	bakery	products	by	way	of	operating	from	the	Company’s	premises	utilizing	the	resources	comprising	of	the	
property,	plant	&	equipment,	current	assets,	labour	and	other	infrastructural	facilities.	With	this	arrangement,	the	Company	
shall	generate	a	royalty	income	as	mutually	agreed	under	this	agreement.	
	
Note	2:	Basis	of	preparation	and	presentation	
	
These	Ind	AS	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	Indian	Accounting	Standards	(Ind	AS)	as	per	the	
Companies	(Indian	Accounting	Standards)	Rules,	2015	notified	under	section	133	of	Companies	Act,	2013,	(the	 ‘Act’)	and	
other	relevant	provisions	of	the	Act	as	amended	from	time	to	time.	
	
The	Ind	AS	financial	statements	were	authorized	for	issue	by	the	Company’s	Board	of	Directors	on	May	09,	2018.	
	
The	Ind	AS	financial	statements	are	presented	in	India	Rupees	(INR),	which	is	also	the	Company’s	functional	currency.	All	
amount	have	been	rounded	off	to	lakhs,	unless	otherwise	indicated.	
	
The	Ind	AS	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	on	the	historical	cost	basis	except	for	certain	financial	instruments	that	
are	measured	at	fair	values	at	the	end	of	each	reporting	period,	as	explained	in	the	accounting	policies	mentioned	below.	
	
Note	2.1:	Going	concern	
	
These	Ind	AS	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	on	a	going	concern	basis	notwithstanding	a	loss	of	Rs.	159	lakhs	for	
the	year	ended	March	31,	2018,	net	current	liabilities	of	Rs.	206	lakhs	as	at	that	date	and	negative	net	worth	of	Rs.	184	lakhs	
as	at	that	date.	The	Company’s	management	has	reviewed	the	Company’s	future	cash	flow	projections	prepared	to	support	
the	going	concern	assumption.	Furthermore,	the	Ultimate	Holding	Company	has	provided	a	letter	of	continuing	support	to	
the	Company	confirming	its	unconditional	and	irrevocable	financial	support	for	a	period	of	at	least	12	months	from	the	date	
of	signing	of	 these	 Ind	AS	 financial	statements.	The	Company’s	management,	based	on	 the	Company’s	 future	cash	 flow	
projections	and	the	aforesaid	 letter	of	continuing	support,	believes	that	the	Company	will	be	able	to	continue	as	a	going	
concern	and	meet	its	financial	obligations	in	the	foreseeable	future.	
	
Fair	value	measurement	
	
Fair	value	is	the	price	that	would	be	received	to	sell	an	asset	or	paid	to	transfer	a	liability	in	an	orderly	transaction	between	
market	participants	at	the	measurement	date,	regardless	of	whether	that	price	 is	directly	observable	or	estimated	using	
another	valuation	 technique.	 In	estimating	 the	 fair	value	of	an	 asset	or	 a	 liability,	 the	Company	 takes	 into	account	 the	
characteristics	of	the	asset	or	liability	if	market	participants	would	take	those	characteristics	into	account	when	pricing	the	
asset	or	liability	at	the	measurement	date.	Fair	value	for	measurement	and/or	disclosure	purposes	in	these	Ind	AS	financial	
statements	is	determined	on	such	a	basis,	except	for	share-based	payment	transactions	that	are	within	the	scope	of	Ind	AS	
102	‘Share	based	Payments’	(“Ind	AS	102”),	leasing	transactions	that	are	within	the	scope	of	Ind	AS	17	‘Leases	(“Ind	AS	17”),	
and	measurements	that	have	some	similarities	to	fair	value	but	are	not	fair	value,	such	as	net	realisable	value	in	Ind	AS	2	
‘Inventories’	(“Ind	AS	2”)	or	value	in	use	in	Ind	AS	36	‘Impairment	of	Assets’	(“Ind	AS	36”).	
	
In	addition,	for	financial	reporting	purposes,	fair	value	measurements	are	categorised	into	Level	1,	2,	or	3	based	on	the	degree	
to	which	 the	 inputs	 to	 the	 fair	value	measurements	 are	observable	and	 the	 significance	of	 the	 inputs	 to	 the	 fair	value	
measurement	in	its	entirety,	which	are	described	as	follows:	
	

· Level	1	inputs	are	quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	identical	assets	or	liabilities	that	the	entity	can	
access	at	the	measurement	date;	
	

· Level	2	inputs	are	inputs,	other	than	quoted	prices	included	within	Level	1,	that	are	observable	for	the	asset	or	
liability,	either	directly	or	indirectly;	and	
	

· Level	3	inputs	are	unobservable	inputs	for	the	asset	or	liability.	
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	
	
Fair	value	measurement	(continued)	
	
For	 assets	and	 liabilities	 that	are	recognised	 in	 the	 financial	statements	on	 a	 recurring	basis,	 the	Company	determines	
whether	transfers	have	occurred	between	levels	in	the	hierarchy	by	re-assessing	categorisation	(based	on	the	lowest	level	
input	that	is	significant	to	the	fair	value	measurement	as	a	whole)	at	the	end	of	each	reporting	period.	
	
For	the	purpose	of	fair	value	disclosures,	the	Company	has	determined	classes	of	assets	and	liabilities	on	the	basis	of	the	
nature,	characteristics	and	risks	of	the	asset	or	liability	and	the	level	of	the	fair	value	hierarchy	as	explained	above.	
		
Use	of	estimates,	judgements	and	assumptions	
	
In	preparing	these	Ind	AS	financial	statements,	management	has	made	judgement,	estimates	and	assumptions	that	affect	the	
application	of	accounting	policies	and	the	reported	amounts	of	assets,	liabilities	income	and	expenses,	the	accompanying	
disclosure	and	 the	disclosure	of	contingent	 liability.	Uncertainty	about	 these	assumptions	and	estimates	could	result	 in	
outcomes	that	require	a	material	adjustment	to	the	carrying	amount	of	assets	or	liabilities	affected	in	future	periods.	
	
Estimates	and	underlying	assumptions	are	reviewed	on	an	ongoing	basis.	Revisions	to	accounting	estimates	are	recognised	
prospectively.			
	
Judgements	
	
Information	about	judgements	made	in	applying	accounting	policies	that	have	the	most	significant	effects	on	the	amounts	
recognized	in	the	Ind	AS	financial	statements	is	included	in	the	following	notes:	
	

· Note	35	-	leases:	whether	an	arrangement	contains	a	lease	
	
Assumption	and	estimation	uncertainties:	
	
The	key	assumptions	concerning	the	future	and	other	key	sources	of	estimation	uncertainty	at	the	reporting	date,	that	have	
a	significant	risk	of	causing	a	material	adjustment	to	the	carrying	amounts	of	assets	and	liabilities	within	the	next	financial	
year,	are	described	below.	The	Company	based	its	assumptions	and	estimates	on	parameters	available	when	the	financial	
statements	were	prepared.	Existing	circumstances	and	assumptions	about	future	developments,	however,	may	change	due	
to	market	changes	or	circumstances	arising	that	are	beyond	the	control	of	the	Company.	Such	changes	are	reflected	in	the	
assumptions	when	they	occur.	
	

· Note	4	-	impairment	test	of	non-financial	assets:	key	assumptions	underlying	recoverable	amounts;	
· Note	29	-	measurement	of	defined	benefit	obligation:	key	actuarial	assumptions;	
· Note	14	&	34-	Recognition	and	measurement	of	provisions	and	contingencies:	key	assumption	about	the	likelihood	

and	magnitude	of	an	outflow	of	resources;	and		
· Note	31	-	impairment	of	financial	assets.	
· Note	33	 -	The	Company	measures	the	cost	of	equity-settled	 transactions	with	employees	using	an	appropriate	

valuation	model	to	determine	the	fair	value	of	the	liability	incurred.	 	
	

Current	versus	non-current	classification	
	
The	Company	presents	assets	and	liabilities	in	the	balance	sheet	based	on	current/non-current	classification.	An	asset	is	
treated	as	current	when	it	is:		
	-	expected	to	be	realised	or	intended	to	be	sold	or	consumed	in	the	normal	operating	cycle.	
	-	held	primarily	for	the	purpose	of	trading	
	-	expected	to	be	realised	within	twelve	months	after	the	reporting	period,	or	
	-	cash	or	cash	equivalent	unless	restricted	from	being	exchanged	or	used	to	settle	a	liability	for	at	least	twelve	months	after	
the	reporting	period	
All	other	assets	are	classified	as	non-current.	
	
A	liability	is	treated	as	current	when:	
	-	it	is	expected	to	be	settled	in	the	normal	operating	cycle	
	-	it	is	held	primarily	for	the	purpose	of	trading	
	-	it	is	due	to	be	settled	within	twelve	months	after	the	reporting	period,	or	
	-	there	is	no	unconditional	right	to	defer	the	settlement	of	the	liability	for	at	least	twelve	months	after	the	reporting	period.	
	
The	Company	classifies	all	other	liabilities	as	non-current.	
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Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Current	versus	non-current	classification	(continued)	
	
Deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	are	classified	as	non-current	assets	and	liabilities.	
	
The	operating	cycle	 is	 the	 time	between	 the	 acquisition	of	assets	 for	processing	and	 their	realisation	 in	 cash	and	cash	
equivalents.	The	Company	has	identified	twelve	months	as	its	operating	cycle.	
	
Revenue	recognition	
	
Revenue	is	recognised	to	the	extent	that	it	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	will	flow	to	the	Company	and	the	revenue	
can	be	reliably	measured,	regardless	of	when	the	payment	is	being	made.		
	
Revenue	is	measured	at	the	fair	value	of	the	consideration	received	or	receivable,	taking	into	account	contractually	defined	
terms	of	payment	and	excluding	taxes	or	duties	collected	on	behalf	of	the	government.	The	Company	has	concluded	that	it	is	
the	principal	in	all	of	its	revenue	arrangements	since	it	is	the	primary	obligor	in	all	the	revenue	arrangements	as	it	has	pricing	
latitude	and	is	also	exposed	to	inventory	and	credit	risks.	Revenue	is	reduced	for	estimated	customer	returns,	rebates	and	
similar	allowances.	
	
Based	on	the	Educational	Material	on	Ind	AS	18	issued	by	the	ICAI,	the	Company	has	assumed	that	recovery	of	excise	duty	
flows	to	the	Company	on	its	own	account.	This	is	for	the	reason	that	it	is	a	liability	of	the	manufacturer	which	forms	part	of	
the	cost	of	production,	 irrespective	of	whether	the	goods	are	sold	or	not.	Since	the	recovery	of	excise	duty	 flows	to	the	
Company	on	its	own	account,	revenue	includes	excise	duty.	
	
However,	sales	tax/	value	added	tax	(VAT)	/	Goods	and	Service	Tax	(GST)	is	not	received	by	the	Company	on	its	own	account.	
Rather,	 it	 is	tax	collected	on	value	added	to	the	commodity	by	the	seller	on	behalf	of	the	government.	Accordingly,	 it	 is	
excluded	from	revenue.	
	
Sale	of	goods	
	
Revenue	 from	sale	of	goods	 is	recognised	when	the	goods	are	delivered	and	titles	have	passed,	at	which	time	all	of	the	
following	conditions	are	satisfied:	
	
· the	Company	has	transferred	to	the	buyer	the	significant	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	of	goods;	
· the	Company	retains	neither	continuing	managerial	involvement	to	the	degree	usually	associated	with	ownership	nor	

effective	control	over	the	goods	sold;	
· the	amount	of	revenue	can	be	measured	reliably;	
· it	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	associated	with	the	transaction	will	flow	to	the	Company;	and	
· the	costs	incurred	or	to	be	incurred	in	respect	of	the	transaction	can	be	measured	reliably.	

Royalty	income	
	
Royalty	income	is	a	payment	received	for	utilizing	the	resources	comprising	of	the	fixed	and	current	assets,	labour	and	other	
infrastructural	facilities	of	the	Company.		
	
Leasing	
	
Leases	are	classified	as	finance	leases	whenever	the	terms	of	the	lease	transfer	substantially	all	the	risks	and	rewards	of	
ownership	to	the	lessee.	All	other	leases	are	classified	as	operating	leases.		
	
The	determination	of	whether	an	arrangement	is	(or	contains)	a	lease	is	based	on	the	substance	of	the	arrangement	at	the	
inception	of	the	lease.	The	arrangement	is,	or	contains,	a	lease	if	fulfilment	of	the	arrangement	is	dependent	on	the	use	of	a	
specific	asset	or	assets	and	the	arrangement	conveys	a	right	to	use	the	asset	or	assets,	even	if	that	right	is	not	explicitly	
specified	in	an	arrangement.		
	

	(This	space	has	been	intentionally	left	blank)	
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Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Leasing	(continued)	
	
The	Company	as	lessee	
	
Rental	expense	from	operating	leases	is	generally	recognised	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	term	of	the	relevant	lease.	
Where	the	rentals	are	structured	solely	to	increase	in	line	with	expected	general	inflation	to	compensate	for	the	lessor’s	
expected	inflationary	cost	increases,	such	 increases	are	recognised	 in	the	year	in	which	such	benefits	accrue.	Contingent	
rentals	arising	under	operating	leases	are	recognised	as	an	expense	in	the	period	in	which	they	are	incurred.	
	
Retirement	and	other	employment	benefits	
	
Retirement	benefit	in	the	form	of	provident	fund	is	a	defined	contribution	scheme.	The	Company	has	no	obligation,	other	
than	the	contribution	payable	to	the	provident	fund.	The	Company	recognizes	contribution	payable	to	the	provident	fund	
scheme	as	an	expense,	when	an	employee	renders	the	related	service.		
	
Post-employment	benefits	
	
Payments	 to	 defined	 contribution	 benefit	 plans	 are	 recognised	 as	 an	 expense	when	 employees	 have	 rendered	 service	
entitling	them	to	the	contributions.		
	
For	defined	benefit	retirement	plans,	the	cost	of	providing	benefits	is	determined	using	the	projected	unit	credit	method,	
with	actuarial	valuations	being	carried	out	at	the	end	of	each	annual	reporting	period.	Re-measurement,	comprising	actuarial	
gains	and	losses,	the	effect	of	the	changes	to	the	asset	ceiling	(if	applicable)	and	the	return	on	plan	assets	(excluding	net	
interest),	is	reflected	immediately	in	the	balance	sheet	with	a	charge	or	credit	recognised	in	other	comprehensive	income	in	
the	period	 in	which	they	occur.	Re-measurement	recognised	 in	other	comprehensive	income	 is	reflected	immediately	in	
retained	earnings	and	is	not	reclassified	to	statement	of	profit	and	loss.	Past	service	cost	is	recognised	in	statement	of	profit	
and	loss	in	the	period	of	a	plan	amendment.	Net	interest	is	calculated	by	applying	the	discount	rate	at	the	beginning	of	the	
period	to	the	net	defined	benefit	liability	or	asset.	Defined	benefit	costs	are	categorised	as	follows:	

· Service	cost	 (including	current	service	cost,	past	service	cost,	as	well	as	gains	and	 losses	on	curtailments	and	
settlements);	

· Net	interest	expense	or	income;	and		
· Re-measurement	

The	Company	presents	the	first	two	components	of	defined	benefit	costs	 in	statement	of	profit	and	 loss	 in	the	 line	 item	
‘Employee	benefits	expense’.	Curtailment	gains	and	losses	are	accounted	for	as	past	service	costs.	
	
The	retirement	benefit	obligation	recognised	in	the	balance	sheet	represents	the	actual	deficit	or	surplus	in	the	Company’s	
defined	benefit	plans.	Any	surplus	resulting	from	this	calculation	is	limited	to	the	present	value	of	any	economic	benefits	
available	in	the	form	of	refunds	from	the	plans	or	reductions	in	future	contributions	to	the	plans.	
	
A	liability	for	a	termination	benefit	is	recognised	at	the	earlier	of	when	the	entity	can	no	longer	withdraw	the	offer	of	the	
termination	benefit	and	when	the	entity	recognises	any	related	restructuring	costs.	
	
Short-term	and	other	long-term	employee	benefits	
A	liability	is	recognised	for	benefits	accruing	to	employees	in	respect	of	wages	and	salaries,	annual	leave	and	sick	leave	in	
the	period,	the	related	service	is	rendered	at	the	undiscounted	amount	of	the	benefits	expected	to	be	paid	in	exchange	for	
that	service.	
	
Liabilities	recognised	in	respect	of	short-term	employee	benefits	are	measured	at	the	undiscounted	amount	of	the	benefits	
expected	to	be	paid	in	exchange	for	the	related	service.	
	
Liabilities	recognised	in	respect	of	other	long-term	employee	benefits	are	measured	at	the	present	value	of	the	estimated	
future	cash	outflows	expected	to	be	made	by	the	Company	in	respect	of	services	provided	by	employees	up	to	the	reporting	
date.	
	
Contributions	from	employees	or	third	parties	to	defined	benefit	plans	
	
Discretionary	contributions	made	by	employees	or	third	parties	reduce	service	cost	upon	payment	of	these	contributions	to	
the	plan.	
	

(This	space	has	been	intentionally	left	blank)	
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Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Retirement	and	other	employment	benefits	(continued)	
	
When	the	formal	terms	of	the	plans	specify	that	there	will	be	contributions	from	employees	or	third	parties,	the	accounting	
depends	on	whether	the	contributions	are	linked	to	service,	as	follows:	
	
If	the	contributions	are	not	linked	to	services	(e.g.	contributions	are	required	to	reduce	a	deficit	arising	from	losses	on	plan	
assets	or	from	actuarial	losses),	they	are	reflected	in	the	re-measurement	of	the	net	defined	benefit	liability	/	(asset).	
	
If	contributions	are	linked	to	services,	they	reduce	service	costs.	For	the	amount	of	contribution	that	is	dependent	on	the	
number	of	years	of	service,	the	Company	reduces	service	cost	by	attributing	the	contributions	to	periods	of	service	using	the	
attribution	method	required	by	Ind	AS	19.70	for	the	gross	benefits.	For	the	amount	of	contribution	that	is	independent	of	the	
number	of	years	of	service,	the	Company	reduces	service	cost	in	the	period	in	which	the	related	service	is	rendered	/	reduces	
service	cost	by	attributing	contributions	to	the	employees’	periods	of	service	in	accordance	with	Ind	AS	19.70.	

Share-based	payment		
	

Employees	of	the	Company	receive	remuneration	in	the	form	of	share-based	payments,	whereby	employees	render	services	
as	consideration	for	equity	instruments	(equity-settled	transactions)	of	the	Ultimate	Holding	Company.	
	
The	cost	of	equity-settled	transactions	is	determined	by	the	fair	value	at	the	date	when	the	grant	is	made	using	an	appropriate	
valuation	model.	That	cost	is	recognised,	together	with	a	corresponding	increase	in	share-based	payment	(SBP)	reserves	in	
equity,	over	the	period	in	which	the	performance	and/or	service	conditions	are	fulfilled	in	employee	benefits	expense.	The	
cumulative	expense	recognised	for	equity-settled	transactions	at	each	reporting	date	until	the	vesting	date	reflects	the	extent	
to	which	the	vesting	period	has	expired	and	the	Company’s	best	estimate	of	the	number	of	equity	 instruments	that	will	
ultimately	vest.	The	statement	of	profit	and	 loss	expense	or	credit	 for	 a	period	represents	the	movement	 in	cumulative	
expense	recognised	as	at	the	beginning	and	end	of	that	period	and	is	recognised	in	employee	benefits	expense.	The	Company	
does	not	reimburse	the	cost	of	employee	stock	options	to	its	Ultimate	Holding	Company.	
	
Earnings	per	share	
	
Basic	earnings	per	share	is	calculated	by	dividing:	
	
· the	net	profit/(loss)	attributable	to	the	equity	holders	of	the	Company;		
· by	the	weighted	average	number	of	equity	shares	outstanding	during	the	financial	year.	

	
Diluted	earnings	per	share	adjusts	the	figure	used	in	determination	of	basic	earnings	per	share	to	take	into	account:	

	
· the	after	income	tax	effect	of	interest	and	other	financing	costs	associated	with	dilutive	potential	equity	shares;	and	
· the	weighted	average	number	of	additional	equity	shares	that	would	have	been	outstanding	assuming	the	conversion	of	

all	dilutive	potential	equity	shares.	
	
Taxes	

	
Current	income	tax	

	
The	tax	currently	payable	is	based	on	taxable	profit	for	the	year.	Taxable	profit	differs	from	‘profit	before	tax’	as	reported	in	
the	statement	of	profit	and	loss	because	of	items	of	income	or	expense	that	are	taxable	or	deductible	in	other	years	and	items	
that	are	never	 taxable	or	deductible.	The	Company’s	current	 tax	 is	calculated	using	 tax	rates	 that	have	been	enacted	or	
substantively	enacted	by	the	end	of	the	reporting	period.	
	
Current	income	tax	relating	to	items	recognised	outside	profit	or	loss	is	recognised	outside	profit	or	loss	(either	in	other	
comprehensive	income	or	in	equity).	Current	tax	items	are	recognised	in	correlation	to	the	underlying	transaction	either	in	
OCI	or	directly	in	equity.	Management	periodically	evaluates	positions	taken	in	the	tax	returns	with	respect	to	situations	in	
which	applicable	tax	regulations	are	subject	to	interpretation	and	establishes	provisions	where	appropriate.	
	
Deferred	tax	
	
Deferred	tax	is	recognised	on	temporary	differences	between	the	carrying	amounts	of	assets	and	liabilities	in	the	Ind	AS	
financial	statements	and	the	corresponding	tax	bases	used	 in	the	computation	of	taxable	profit.	While	preparing	Ind	AS	
financial	statements,	temporary	differences	are	calculated	using	the	carrying	amount	as	per	Ind	AS	financial	statements	and	
tax	bases	as	determined	by	reference	to	the	method	of	tax	computation.	
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Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Taxes	(continued)	
	
Deferred	 tax	 liabilities	 are	 generally	recognised	 for	all	 taxable	 temporary	differences.	Deferred	 tax	assets	are	 generally	
recognised	 for	all	deductible	temporary	differences	to	the	extent	that	it	 is	probable	that	taxable	profits	will	be	available	
against	which	 those	 deductible	 temporary	 differences	 can	 be	 utilised.	 Such	 deferred	 tax	 assets	 and	 liabilities	 are	 not	
recognised	if	the	temporary	difference	arises	from	the	initial	recognition	(other	than	in	a	business	combination)	of	assets	
and	 liabilities	 in	 a	 transaction	 that	affects	neither	 the	 taxable	profit	nor	 the	accounting	profit.	 In	addition,	deferred	 tax	
liabilities	are	not	recognised	if	the	temporary	difference	arises	from	the	initial	recognition	of	goodwill.	
	
The	carrying	amount	of	deferred	tax	assets	is	reviewed	at	the	end	of	each	reporting	period	and	reduced	to	the	extent	that	it	
is	no	longer	probable	that	sufficient	taxable	profits	will	be	available	to	allow	all	or	part	of	the	asset	to	be	recovered.	
	
Deferred	tax	liabilities	and	assets	are	measured	at	the	tax	rates	that	are	expected	to	apply	in	the	period	in	which	the	liability	
is	settled	or	the	asset	realised,	based	on	tax	rates	(and	tax	laws)	that	have	been	enacted	or	substantively	enacted	by	the	end	
of	the	reporting	period.		
	
The	measurement	of	deferred	tax	liabilities	and	assets	reflects	the	tax	consequences	that	would	follow	from	the	manner	in	
which	the	Company	expects,	at	the	end	of	the	reporting	period,	to	recover	or	settle	the	carrying	amount	of	its	assets	and	
liabilities.	
	
Current	and	deferred	tax	for	the	year	
	
Current	and	deferred	tax	are	recognised	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss,	except	when	they	relate	to	items	that	are	recognised	
in	other	comprehensive	income	or	directly	in	equity,	in	which	case,	the	current	and	deferred	tax	are	also	recognised	in	other	
comprehensive	income	or	directly	in	equity	respectively.	Where	current	tax	or	deferred	tax	arises	from	the	initial	accounting	
for	a	business	combination,	the	tax	effect	is	included	in	the	accounting	for	the	business	combination.	
	
Deferred	tax	assets	and	deferred	tax	liabilities	are	offset	if	a	legally	enforceable	right	exists	to	set	off	current	tax	assets	against	
current	tax	liabilities	and	the	deferred	taxes	relate	to	the	same	taxable	entity	and	the	same	taxation	authority.	
	
Sales/	value	added	taxes	paid	on	acquisition	of	assets	or	on	incurring	expenses	
	
Expenses	and	assets	are	recognised	net	of	the	amount	of	sales/value	added	taxes	paid,	except:	
	
- When	the	tax	incurred	on	a	purchase	of	assets	or	services	is	not	recoverable	from	the	taxation	authority,	in	which	case,	the	

tax	paid	is	recognised	as	part	of	the	cost	of	acquisition	of	the	asset	or	as	part	of	the	expense	item,	as	applicable	
	
- When	receivables	and	payables	are	stated	with	the	amount	of	tax	included	
	
Property,	plant	and	equipment	
	
Property,	plant	and	equipment	is	stated	at	cost,	net	of	accumulated	depreciation	and	accumulated	impairment	losses,	if	any.	
The	cost	comprises	purchase	price,	cost	of	replacing	part	of	the	plant	and	equipment,	borrowing	costs	if	the	recognition	
criteria	are	met	and	directly	attributable	cost	of	bringing	the	asset	to	its	location	and	condition	necessary	for	the	intended	
use.	Any	trade	discounts	and	rebates	are	deducted	in	arriving	at	the	purchase	price.	When	significant	parts	of	plant	and	
equipment	are	required	to	be	replaced	at	intervals,	the	Company	depreciates	them	separately	based	on	their	specific	useful	
lives.	 Likewise,	when	 a	major	 inspection	 is	 performed,	 its	 cost	 is	 recognised	 in	 the	 carrying	 amount	 of	 the	 plant	 and	
equipment	as	a	replacement	if	the	recognition	criteria	are	satisfied.	All	other	repair	and	maintenance	costs	are	recognised	in	
statement	of	profit	and	loss	as	incurred.	The	present	value	of	the	expected	cost	for	the	decommissioning	of	an	asset	after	its	
use	is	included	in	the	cost	of	the	respective	asset	if	the	recognition	criteria	for	a	provision	are	met.	
	
Subsequent	costs	are	included	in	the	asset’s	carrying	amount	or	recognised	as	a	separate	asset,	as	appropriate,	only	when	it	
is	probable	that	future	economic	benefits	associated	with	the	items	will	flow	to	the	Company	and	the	cost	of	the	item	can	be	
measured	reliably.	
	
Depreciation	of	these	assets	commences	when	the	assets	are	ready	for	their	intended	use.	An	asset	is	normally	ready	for	its	
intended	use	or	sale	when	the	physical	construction	of	the	asset	is	complete	even	though	routine	administrative	work	might	
still	continue.	
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Property,	plant	and	equipment	(continued)	
	
Depreciation	is	recognised	so	as	to	write	off	the	cost	of	assets	(other	than	freehold	land)	less	their	residual	values	over	their	
useful	lives,	using	the	straight-line	method.	The	estimated	useful	lives,	residual	values	and	depreciation	method	are	reviewed	
at	the	end	of	each	reporting	period,	with	the	effect	of	any	changes	in	estimate	accounted	for	on	a	prospective	basis.	Estimated	
useful	lives	of	the	assets	are	as	follows:	
	

Asset	 Useful	Life	 Asset	 Useful	Life	
Plant	and	machinery	 1-15	years	 Office	equipment		 5	years	
Furniture	and	fixtures		 10	years	 Computers	 1-3	years	
Vehicles	 10	years	 	 	
	 	 	 	

An	item	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	is	derecognised	upon	disposal	or	when	no	future	economic	benefits	are	expected	
to	arise	from	the	continued	use	of	the	asset.	Any	gain	or	loss	arising	on	the	disposal	or	retirement	of	an	item	of	property,	
plant	and	equipment	is	determined	as	the	difference	between	the	sales	proceeds	and	the	carrying	amount	of	the	asset	and	is	
recognised	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss.	
	
Advances	paid	towards	the	acquisition	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	outstanding	at	each	balance	sheet	date	is	classified	
as	capital	advances	under	the	non-current	assets	and	the	cost	of	assets	not	put	to	use	before	such	date	are	disclosed	under	
‘Capital	work-in	progress’.	
	
Impairment	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	
	
At	the	end	of	each	reporting	period,	the	Company	reviews	the	carrying	amounts	of	its	tangible	assets	to	determine	whether	
there	 is	any	 indication	that	those	assets	have	suffered	an	impairment	 loss.	If	any	such	 indication	exists,	the	recoverable	
amount	of	the	asset	is	estimated	in	order	to	determine	the	extent	of	the	impairment	loss	(if	any).	When	it	is	not	possible	to	
estimate	 the	 recoverable	 amount	 of	 an	 individual	 asset,	 the	 Company	 estimates	 the	 recoverable	 amount	 of	 the	 cash-
generating	unit	to	which	the	asset	belongs.	When	a	reasonable	and	consistent	basis	of	allocation	can	be	identified,	corporate	
assets	are	also	allocated	to	individual	cash-generating	units,	or	otherwise	they	are	allocated	to	the	smallest	group	of	cash-
generating	units	for	which	a	reasonable	and	consistent	allocation	basis	can	be	identified.	
	
The	Company	bases	its	impairment	calculation	on	detailed	budgets	and	forecast	calculations,	which	are	prepared	separately	
for	 each	 of	 the	 Company’s	 CGUs	 to	which	 the	 individual	 assets	 are	 allocated.	These	budgets	 and	 forecast	 calculations	
generally	cover	a	period	of	five	years.	For	longer	periods,	a	long-term	growth	rate	is	calculated	and	applied	to	project	future	
cash	 flows	 after	 the	 fifth	 year.	 To	 estimate	 cash	 flow	 projections	 beyond	 periods	 covered	 by	 the	 most	 recent	
budgets/forecasts,	the	Company	extrapolates	cash	flow	projections	in	the	budget	using	a	steady	or	declining	growth	rate	for	
subsequent	years,	unless	an	 increasing	rate	can	be	 justified.	In	any	case,	this	growth	rate	does	not	exceed	the	 long-term	
average	growth	rate	for	the	products,	industries,	or	country	or	countries	in	which	the	entity	operates,	or	for	the	market	in	
which	the	asset	is	used.	
	
If	the	recoverable	amount	of	an	asset	(or	cash-generating	unit)	is	estimated	to	be	less	than	its	carrying	amount,	the	carrying	
amount	of	 the	 asset	 (or	 cash-generating	unit)	 is	 reduced	 to	 its	 recoverable	 amount.	An	 impairment	 loss	 is	 recognised	
immediately	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss.	
	
When	an	impairment	loss	subsequently	reverses,	the	carrying	amount	of	the	asset	(or	a	cash-generating	unit)	is	increased	to	
the	revised	estimate	of	 its	recoverable	amount,	but	so	that	the	 increased	carrying	amount	does	not	exceed	the	carrying	
amount	that	would	have	been	determined	had	no	impairment	loss	been	recognised	for	the	asset	(or	cash-generating	unit)	in	
prior	years.	A	reversal	of	an	impairment	loss	is	recognised	immediately	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss.		
	
Borrowing	costs	
	
Borrowing	costs	directly	attributable	 to	 the	acquisition,	construction	or	production	of	an	asset	 that	necessarily	 takes	 a	
substantial	period	of	time	to	get	ready	for	its	intended	use	or	sale	are	capitalised	as	part	of	the	cost	of	the	asset.	All	other	
borrowing	costs	are	expensed	in	the	period	in	which	they	occur.	Borrowing	costs	consist	of	interest	and	other	costs	that	an	
entity	incurs	in	connection	with	the	borrowing	of	funds.	Borrowing	cost	also	includes	exchange	differences	to	the	extent	
regarded	as	an	adjustment	to	the	borrowing	costs.	
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Inventories	
	
Inventories	are	stated	at	the	lower	of	cost	and	net	realisable	value.	Costs	of	inventories	are	determined	as	stated	below.	Net	
realisable	 value	 represents	 the	 estimated	 selling	price	 for	 inventories	 less	 all	 estimated	 costs	 of	 completion	 and	 costs	
necessary	to	make	the	sale.	
	
Costs	incurred	in	bringing	each	product	to	its	present	location	and	conditions	are	accounted	for	as	follows:	
	
· Raw	materials,	packing	material	and	 store	 &	 spares:	cost	 includes	cost	of	purchase	and	other	costs	 incurred	 in	

bringing	the	inventories	to	their	present	location	and	condition.	Cost	is	determined	on	weighted	average	cost	basis.	
	

· Finished	 goods	 and	 work	 in	 progress:	 cost	 includes	 cost	 of	 direct	 materials	 and	 labour	 and	 a	 proportion	 of	
manufacturing	overheads	based	on	the	normal	operating	capacity,	but	excluding	borrowing	costs.		
	

Provisions	
	
Provisions	are	recognised	when	the	Company	has	a	present	obligation	(legal	or	constructive)	as	a	result	of	a	past	event,	it	is	
probable	that	the	Company	will	be	required	to	settle	the	obligation,	and	a	reliable	estimate	can	be	made	of	the	amount	of	the	
obligation.	
	
The	amount	recognised	as	a	provision	is	the	best	estimate	of	the	consideration	required	to	settle	the	present	obligation	at	
the	end	of	the	reporting	period,	taking	into	account	the	risks	and	uncertainties	surrounding	the	obligation.	When	a	provision	
is	measured	using	the	cash	flows	estimated	to	settle	the	present	obligation,	its	carrying	amount	is	the	present	value	of	those	
cash	flows	(when	the	effect	of	the	time	value	of	money	is	material).	
	
When	some	or	all	of	the	economic	benefits	required	to	settle	a	provision	are	expected	to	be	recovered	from	a	third	party,	a	
receivable	 is	recognised	as	an	asset	 if	 it	 is	virtually	certain	 that	reimbursement	will	be	received	and	 the	amount	of	 the	
receivable	can	be	measured	reliably.	
	
Onerous	contracts	
	
Present	obligations	arising	under	onerous	contracts	are	recognised	and	measured	as	provisions.	An	onerous	contract	 is	
considered	to	exist	where	the	Company	has	a	contract	under	which	the	unavoidable	costs	of	meeting	the	obligations	under	
the	contract	exceed	the	economic	benefits	expected	to	be	received	from	the	contract.	
	
Financial	instruments	
	
A	 financial	 instrument	 is	any	contract	 that	gives	rise	 to	a	 financial	asset	of	one	entity	and	a	 financial	 liability	or	equity	
instrument	of	another	entity.	
	
Trade	receivables	and	debt	securities	issued	are	initially	recognised	when	they	are	originated.	All	other	financial	assets	and	
financial	liabilities	are	recognised	when	the	Company	becomes	a	party	to	the	contractual	provisions	of	the	instruments.		
	
Financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	are	initially	measured	at	fair	value.	Transaction	costs	that	are	directly	attributable	to	
the	acquisition	or	issue	of	financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	(other	than	financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	at	fair	
value	through	statement	of	profit	and	loss)	are	added	to	or	deducted	from	the	fair	value	of	the	financial	assets	or	financial	
liabilities,	as	appropriate,	on	initial	recognition.	Transaction	costs	directly	attributable	to	the	acquisition	of	financial	assets	
or	financial	liabilities	at	fair	value	through	statement	of	profit	and	loss	are	recognised	immediately	in	statement	of	profit	and	
loss.	
	
All	regular	way	purchases	or	sales	of	financial	assets	are	recognised	and	derecognised	on	a	trade	date	basis.	Regular	way	
purchases	or	sales	are	purchases	or	sales	of	financial	assets	that	require	delivery	of	assets	within	the	time	frame	established	
by	regulation	or	convention	in	the	marketplace.	
	
All	recognised	financial	assets	are	subsequently	measured	in	their	entirety	at	either	amortised	cost	or	fair	value,	depending	
on	the	classification	of	the	financial	assets.	
	
Subsequent	measurement	
	
For	purposes	of	subsequent	measurement,	financial	assets	are	classified	in	four	categories:	
(i)			Debt	instruments	at	amortised	cost	
(ii)		Debt	instruments	at	fair	value	through	other	comprehensive	income	(FVTOCI)	
(iii)	Debt	instruments,	derivatives	and	equity	instruments	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss	(FVTPL)	



Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Financial	instruments	(continued)	
	
(iv)	Equity	instruments	measured	at	fair	value	through	other	comprehensive	income	(FVTOCI)	
	
Debt	instruments	at	amortised	cost:	
		
Debt	 instruments	 that	 meet	 the	 following	 conditions	 are	 subsequently	 measured	 at	 amortised	 cost	 (except	 for	 debt	
investments	that	are	designated	as	at	fair	value	through	statement	of	profit	and	loss	on	initial	recognition):	
	

· the	asset	is	held	within	a	business	model	whose	objective	is	to	hold	assets	in	order	to	collect	contractual	cash	flows;	and	
· the	contractual	terms	of	the	instrument	give	rise	on	specified	dates	to	cash	flows	that	are	solely	payments	of	principal	

and	interest	on	the	principal	amount	outstanding.		

Debt	instruments	at	fair	value	through	other	comprehensive	income	(FVTOCI):	
	
Debt	instruments	that	meet	the	following	conditions	are	subsequently	measured	at	fair	value	through	other	comprehensive	
income	 (except	 for	debt	 investments	 that	are	designated	as	at	 fair	value	 through	statement	of	profit	and	 loss	on	 initial	
recognition)	(‘FVTOCI	debt	instruments’):	
	
· the	asset	is	held	within	a	business	model	whose	objective	is	achieved	both	by	collecting	contractual	cash	flows	and	selling	

financial	assets;	and	
· the	contractual	terms	of	the	instrument	give	rise	on	specified	dates	to	cash	flows	that	are	solely	payments	of	principal	and	

interest	on	the	principal	amount	outstanding.		

Debt	instruments,	derivatives	and	equity	instruments	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss	(FVTPL):	
	
FVTPL	is	a	residual	category	for	debt	instruments.	Any	debt	instrument,	which	does	not	meet	the	criteria	for	categorization	
as	at	amortized	cost	or	as	FVTOCI,	is	classified	as	at	FVTPL.	
In	addition,	the	Company	may	elect	to	designate	a	debt	instrument,	which	otherwise	meets	amortized	cost	or	FVTOCI	criteria,	
as	 at	 FVTPL.	However,	 such	 election	 is	 allowed	 only	 if	 doing	 so	 reduces	 or	 eliminates	 a	measurement	 or	 recognition	
inconsistency	(referred	to	as	‘accounting	mismatch’).	The	Company	has	not	designated	any	debt	instrument	as	at	FVTPL.	
	
Equity	instruments	measured	at	fair	value	through	other	comprehensive	income	(FVTOCI):	
	
All	equity	investments	in	scope	of	Ind	AS	109	are	measured	at	fair	value.	Equity	instruments	which	are	held	for	trading	and	
contingent	consideration	recognised	by	an	acquirer	in	a	business	combination	to	which	Ind	AS	103	applies	are	classified	as	
at	FVTPL.	For	all	other	equity	instruments,	the	Company	may	make	an	irrevocable	election	to	present	in	OCI	subsequent	
changes	in	the	fair	value.	The	Company	makes	such	election	on	an	instrument-by-instrument	basis.	The	classification	is	made	
on	initial	recognition	and	is	irrevocable.		
	
If	the	Company	decides	to	classify	an	equity	instrument	as	at	FVTOCI,	then	all	fair	value	changes	on	the	instrument,	excluding	
dividends,	are	recognized	in	the	OCI.	There	is	no	recycling	of	the	amounts	from	OCI	to	statement	of	profit	and	loss,	even	on	
sale	of	investment.	However,	the	Company	may	transfer	the	cumulative	gain	or	loss	within	equity.	
	
Equity	 instruments	 included	within	 the	FVTPL	 category	 are	measured	 at	 fair	value	with	 all	 changes	 recognized	 in	 the	
statement	of	statement	of	profit	and	loss.	
	
Effective	interest	method	
	
The	effective	interest	method	is	a	method	of	calculating	the	amortised	cost	of	a	debt	instrument	and	of	allocating	interest	
income	over	the	relevant	period.	The	effective	interest	rate	is	the	rate	that	exactly	discounts	estimated	future	cash	receipts	
(including	all	fees	and	points	paid	or	received	that	form	an	integral	part	of	the	effective	interest	rate,	transaction	costs	and	
other	premiums	or	discounts)	through	the	expected	life	of	the	debt	instrument,	or,	where	appropriate,	a	shorter	period,	to	
the	net	carrying	amount	on	initial	recognition.	
	
Income	 is	recognised	on	an	effective	interest	basis	 for	debt	 instruments	other	than	those	financial	assets	classified	as	at	
FVTPL.	Interest	income	is	recognised	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss	and	is	included	in	the	“Other	Income”.	
	
Financial	assets	at	FVTPL	are	measured	at	fair	value	at	the	end	of	each	reporting	period,	with	any	gains	or	losses	arising	on	
re-measurement	recognised	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss.	The	net	gain	or	loss	recognised	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss	
incorporates	any	dividend	or	interest	earned	on	the	financial	asset	and	is	included	in	the	‘Other	income’.		
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Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Financial	instruments	(continued)	
	
Dividend	on	financial	assets	at	FVTPL	is	recognised	when	the	Company’s	right	to	receive	the	dividends	is	established,	it	is	
probable	that	the	economic	benefits	associated	with	the	dividend	will	flow	to	the	entity,	the	dividend	does	not	represent	a	
recovery	of	part	of	cost	of	the	investment	and	the	amount	of	dividend	can	be	measured	reliably.	
	
Impairment	of	financial	assets	
	
In	accordance	with	Ind	AS	109,	the	Company	applies	expected	credit	loss	(ECL)	model	for	measurement	and	recognition	of	
impairment	loss	on	the	following	financial	assets	and	credit	risk	exposure:	
a)	Financial	assets	that	are	debt	instruments,	and	are	measured	at	amortised	cost	e.g.,	loans,	debt	securities,	deposits,	trade	
receivables	and	bank	balances		
b)	Financial	assets	that	are	debt	instruments	and	are	measured	as	at	FVTOCI	
c)	Loan	commitments	which	are	not	measured	as	at	FVTPL	
d)	Financial	guarantee	contracts	which	are	not	measured	as	at	FVTPL	
	
The	Company	follows	‘simplified	approach’	for	recognition	of	impairment	loss	allowance	on	trade	receivables.	
	
Expected	credit	losses	are	the	weighted	average	of	credit	losses	with	the	respective	risks	of	default	occurring	as	the	weights.	
Credit	loss	is	the	difference	between	all	contractual	cash	flows	that	are	due	to	the	Company	in	accordance	with	the	contract	
and	all	the	cash	flows	that	the	Company	expects	to	receive	(i.e.	all	cash	shortfalls),	discounted	at	the	original	effective	interest	
rate	(or	credit-adjusted	effective	interest	rate	for	purchased	or	originated	credit-impaired	financial	assets).	The	Company	
estimates	cash	flows	by	considering	all	contractual	terms	of	the	financial	instrument	(for	example,	prepayment,	extension,	
call	and	similar	options)	through	the	expected	life	of	that	financial	instrument.	
	
The	Company	measures	the	loss	allowance	for	a	financial	instrument	at	an	amount	equal	to	the	lifetime	expected	credit	losses	
if	the	credit	risk	on	that	financial	asset	has	increased	significantly	since	initial	recognition.	If	the	credit	risk	on	a	financial	
asset	has	not	increased	significantly	since	initial	recognition,	the	Company	measures	the	loss	allowance	for	that	financial	
instrument	at	an	amount	equal	to	12-month	expected	credit	losses.	12-month	expected	credit	losses	are	portion	of	the	life-
time	expected	credit	losses	and	represent	the	lifetime	cash	shortfalls	that	will	result	if	default	occurs	within	the	12	months	
after	the	reporting	date	and	thus,	are	not	cash	shortfalls	that	are	predicted	over	the	next	12	months.	
	
If	the	Company	measured	loss	allowance	for	a	financial	instrument	at	lifetime	expected	credit	loss	model	in	the	previous	
period,	but	determines	at	 the	end	of	 a	reporting	period	 that	 the	credit	risk	has	not	 increased	 significantly	 since	 initial	
recognition	due	to	improvement	in	credit	quality	as	compared	to	the	previous	period,	the	Company	again	measures	the	loss	
allowance	based	on	12-month	expected	credit	losses.	
	
When	making	the	assessment	of	whether	there	has	been	a	significant	 increase	in	credit	risk	since	 initial	recognition,	the	
Company	uses	the	change	in	the	risk	of	a	default	occurring	over	the	expected	life	of	the	financial	instrument	instead	of	the	
change	 in	 the	amount	of	expected	credit	 losses.	To	make	 that	assessment,	 the	Company	compares	 the	risk	of	 a	default	
occurring	on	the	financial	asset	as	at	the	reporting	date	with	the	risk	of	a	default	occurring	on	the	financial	asset	as	at	the	
date	of	initial	recognition	and	considers	reasonable	and	supportable	information,	that	is	available	without	undue	cost	or	
effort,	that	is	indicative	of	significant	increases	in	credit	risk	since	initial	recognition.	
	
Further,	for	the	purpose	of	measuring	lifetime	expected	credit	loss	allowance	for	trade	receivables,	the	Company	has	used	a	
practical	expedient	as	permitted	under	Ind	AS	109.	This	expected	credit	loss	allowance	is	computed	based	on	a	provision	
matrix	which	takes	into	account	historical	credit	loss	experience	and	adjusted	for	forward-looking	information.	
	
ECL	impairment	loss	allowance	(or	reversal)	recognized	during	the	period	is	recognized	as	income/	expense	in	the	statement	
of	profit	and	loss	(P&L).	This	amount	is	reflected	under	the	head	‘other	expenses’	in	the	P&L.	The	balance	sheet	presentation	
for	various	financial	instruments	is	described	below:	
(i)	 Financial	 assets	measured	 as	 at	 amortised	 cost:	 ECL	 is	 presented	 as	 an	 allowance,	 i.e.,	 as	 an	 integral	 part	 of	 the	
measurement	of	those	assets	in	the	balance	sheet.	The	allowance	reduces	the	net	carrying	amount.	Until	the	asset	meets	
write-off	criteria,	the	Company	does	not	reduce	impairment	allowance	from	the	gross	carrying	amount.	
(ii)	Debt	instruments	measured	at	FVTOCI:	Since	financial	assets	are	already	reflected	at	fair	value,	impairment	allowance	is	
not	further	reduced	from	its	value.	Rather,	ECL	amount	is	presented	as	‘accumulated	impairment	amount’	in	the	OCI.	
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Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Financial	instruments	(continued)	
	
De-recognition	of	financial	assets	
	
The	Company	derecognises	a	financial	asset	when	the	contractual	rights	to	the	cash	flows	from	the	asset	expire,	or	when	it	
transfers	the	financial	asset	and	substantially	all	the	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	of	the	asset	to	another	party.	If	the	
Company	neither	transfers	nor	retains	substantially	all	the	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	and	continues	to	control	the	
transferred	asset,	the	Company	recognises	its	retained	interest	in	the	
asset	and	an	associated	liability	for	amounts	it	may	have	to	pay.	If	the	Company	retains	substantially	all	the	risks	and	rewards	
of	ownership	of	a	transferred	financial	asset,	the	Company	continues	to	recognise	the	financial	asset	and	also	recognises	a	
collateralised	borrowing	for	the	proceeds	received.		
	
On	de-recognition	of	a	financial	asset	in	its	entirety,	the	difference	between	the	asset’s	carrying	amount	and	the	sum	of	the	
consideration	received	and	receivable	and	the	cumulative	gain	or	 loss	that	had	been	recognised	 in	other	comprehensive	
income	and	accumulated	in	equity	is	recognised	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss	if	such	gain	or	loss	would	have	otherwise	
been	recognized	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss	on	disposal	of	that	financial	asset.	
	
On	de-recognition	of	a	financial	asset	other	than	in	its	entirety	(e.g.	when	the	Company	retains	an	option	to	repurchase	part	
of	 a	 transferred	asset),	 the	Company	 allocates	 the	previous	 carrying	 amount	of	 the	 financial	 asset	between	 the	part	 it	
continues	to	recognise	under	continuing	involvement,	and	the	part	it	no	longer	recognises	on	the	basis	of	the	relative	fair	
values	of	those	parts	on	the	date	of	the	transfer.	The	difference	between	the	carrying	amount	allocated	to	the	part	that	is	no	
longer	recognised	and	the	sum	of	the	consideration	received	for	the	part	no	longer	recognised	and	any	cumulative	gain	or	
loss	allocated	to	it	that	had	been	recognised	in	other	comprehensive	income	is	recognised	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss	if	
such	gain	or	loss	would	have	otherwise	been	recognised	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss	on	disposal	of	that	financial	asset.	A	
cumulative	gain	or	loss	that	had	been	recognised	in	other	comprehensive	income	is	allocated	between	the	part	that	continues	
to	be	recognised	and	the	part	that	is	no	longer	recognised	on	the	basis	of	the	relative	fair	values	of	those	parts.	
	
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	
	
Cash	 is	cash	on	hand	and	demand	deposits.	Cash	equivalents	are	short	 term,	highly	 liquid	 investments	 that	are	readily	
convertible	to	known	amounts	of	cash	and	which	are	subject	to	insignificant	risk	of	changes	in	value.	
	
Classification	as	debt	or	equity	
	
Debt	and	equity	instruments	issued	by	the	Company	are	classified	as	either	financial	liabilities	or	as	equity	in	accordance	
with	the	substance	of	the	contractual	arrangements	and	the	definitions	of	a	financial	liability	and	an	equity	instrument.	
	
Equity	instruments	
	
An	equity	instrument	is	any	contract	that	evidences	a	residual	interest	in	the	assets	of	an	entity	after	deducting	all	of	its	
liabilities.	Equity	instruments	issued	by	the	Company	are	recognised	at	the	proceeds	received,	net	of	direct	issue	costs.	
	
Compound	instruments	
	
The	component	parts	of	compound	instruments	issued	by	the	Company	are	classified	separately	as	financial	liabilities	and	
equity	in	accordance	with	the	substance	of	the	contractual	arrangements	and	the	definitions	of	a	financial	liability	and	an	
equity	instrument.	A	conversion	option	that	will	be	settled	by	the	exchange	of	a	fixed	amount	of	cash	or	another	financial	
asset	for	a	fixed	number	of	the	Company’s	own	equity	instruments	is	an	equity	instrument.	
	
At	the	date	of	issue,	the	fair	value	of	the	liability	component	is	estimated	using	the	prevailing	market	interest	rate	for	similar	
instruments.	This	amount	 is	recorded	as	 a	 liability	on	an	amortised	cost	basis	using	 the	effective	 interest	method	until	
extinguished	upon	conversion	or	at	the	instrument’s	maturity	date.	
	
The	conversion	option	classified	as	equity	is	determined	by	deducting	the	amount	of	the	liability	component	from	the	fair	
value	of	the	compound	instrument	as	a	whole.	This	is	recognised	and	included	in	equity,	net	of	income	tax	effects,	and	is	not	
subsequently	re-measured.		
	
Transaction	costs	that	relate	to	the	issue	of	the	compound	instruments	are	allocated	to	the	liability	and	equity	components	
in	proportion	to	the	allocation	of	the	gross	proceeds.	Transaction	costs	relating	to	the	equity	component	are	recognised	
directly	in	equity.	Transaction	costs	relating	to	the	liability	component	are	included	in	the	carrying	amount	of	the	liability	
component	and	are	amortised	over	the	lives	of	the	convertible	instrument	using	the	effective	interest	method.	
	
	



Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Compound	instruments	(continued)	
	
Financial	liabilities	

All	financial	liabilities	are	subsequently	measured	at	amortised	cost	using	the	effective	interest	method.	Financial	liabilities	
are	classified	as	FVTPL,	if	it	classified	as	held-for-trading,	or	it	is	designated	as	such	on	initial	recognition.	Financial	guarantee	
contracts	issued	by	the	Company	are	measured	in	accordance	with	the	specific	accounting	policies	set	out	below.	
	
Financial	liabilities	subsequently	measured	at	amortised	cost	
	
Financial	liabilities	that	are	not	held-for-trading	and	are	not	designated	as	FVTPL	are	measured	at	amortised	cost	at	the	end	
of	subsequent	accounting	periods.	The	carrying	amounts	of	financial	liabilities	that	are	subsequently	measured	at	amortised	
cost	are	determined	based	on	the	effective	interest	method.	Interest	expense	are	included	in	'Finance	costs'.	
	
The	effective	interest	method	is	a	method	of	calculating	the	amortised	cost	of	a	financial	liability	and	of	allocating	interest	
expense	over	the	relevant	period.	The	effective	interest	rate	is	the	rate	that	exactly	discounts	estimated	future	cash	payments	
(including	all	fees	and	points	paid	or	received	that	form	an	integral	part	of	the	effective	interest	rate,	transaction	costs	and	
other	premiums	or	discounts)	through	the	expected	life	of	the	financial	liability,	or	(where	appropriate)	a	shorter	period,	to	
the	net	carrying	amount	on	initial	recognition.	
	
Financial	guarantee	contracts	
	
A	financial	guarantee	contract	is	a	contract	that	requires	the	issuer	to	make	specified	payments	to	reimburse	the	holder	for	
a	loss	it	incurs	because	a	specified	debtor	fails	to	make	payments	when	due	in	accordance	with	the	terms	of	a	debt	instrument.	
	
Financial	 guarantee	 contracts	 issued	 by	 the	 Company	 are	 initially	measured	 at	 their	 fair	 values	 and	 are	 subsequently	
measured	at	the	higher	of:	
	
· the	amount	of	loss	allowance	determined	in	accordance	with	impairment	requirements	of	Ind	AS	109;	and	
· the	amount	initially	recognised	less,	when	appropriate,	the	cumulative	amount	of	income	recognised	in	accordance	with	

the	principles	of	Ind	AS	18.	
	
When	 guarantee	 in	 relation	 to	 loans	 or	 other	payables	 are	 provided	by	 the	Holding	 Company	 on	 behalf	 of	 subsidiary	
companies	for	no	compensation,	the	fair	values	are	accounted	for	as	contribution	from	the	Holding	Company.	
	
Derecognition	of	financial	liabilities	
	
The	Company	derecognises	financial	liabilities	when,	and	only	when,	the	Company’s	obligations	are	discharged,	cancelled	or	
have	expired.	An	exchange	between	a	lender	of	debt	instruments	with	substantially	different	terms	is	accounted	for	as	an	
extinguishment	of	 the	original	 financial	 liability	and	 the	 recognition	of	 a	new	 financial	 liability.	Similarly,	 a	 substantial	
modification	of	the	terms	of	an	existing	financial	liability	(whether	or	not	attributable	to	the	financial	difficulty	of	the	debtor)	
is	accounted	for	as	an	extinguishment	of	the	original	financial	liability	and	the	recognition	of	a	new	financial	liability.	The	
difference	between	the	carrying	amount	of	the	 financial	 liability	derecognised	and	the	consideration	paid	and	payable	is	
recognised	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss.	
	
Offsetting	of	financial	instruments	
	
Financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	are	offset	and	the	net	amount	is	reported	in	the	balance	sheet	if	there	is	a	currently	
enforceable	legal	right	to	offset	the	recognised	amounts	and	there	is	an	intention	to	settle	on	a	net	basis,	to	realise	the	assets	
and	settle	the	liabilities	simultaneously.	
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Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Contingent	liabilities	
	
A	contingent	liability	is	a	possible	obligation	that	arises	from	past	events	whose	existence	will	be	confirmed	by	the	occurrence	
or	non-occurrence	of	one	or	more	uncertain	future	events	beyond	the	control	of	the	Company	or	a	present	obligation	that	is	
not	recognized	because	it	is	not	probable	that	an	outflow	of	resources	will	be	required	to	settle	the	obligation.	A	contingent	
liability	also	arises	in	extremely	rare	cases	where	there	is	a	liability	that	cannot	be	recognized	because	it	cannot	be	measured	
reliably.	The	Company	does	not	recognize	a	contingent	liability	but	discloses	its	existence	in	the	financial	statements	unless	
the	possibility	of	an	outflow	of	resources	embodying	economic	benefits	is	remote.	

	
Contingent	liabilities	and	commitments	are	reviewed	by	the	management	at	each	balance	sheet	date.	
	
Operating	segment		
	
The	Board	of	Directors	(“Board”)	of	the	Company	assesses	the	financial	performance	and	position	of	the	Company,	and	makes	
strategic	 decisions.	The	 Board	 has	 been	 identified	 as	 being	 the	 chief	 operating	 decision	maker	 (‘CODM’).	The	 CODM,	
responsible	for	strategic	decisions,	for	the	assessment	of	the	segments’	performance	and	for	the	allocation	of	resources	to	
the	segments,	is	the	Board	of	Directors.	
	
The	Company	 is	primarily	engaged	 in	 the	business	of	manufacturing	and	distribution	of	confectionery,	bakery	and	milk	
products.	Hence	there	is	no	separate	reportable	segment	under	Ind	AS	108	‘Operating	segment’.	
	
New	and	amended	standards	and	interpretations	
The	Company	applied	for	the	first	time	certain	amendments	to	the	standards,	which	are	effective	for	annual	periods	beginning	
on	or	after	April	1,	2017.	The	nature	and	the	impact	of	each	amendment	is	described	below:	
	
Amendments	to	Ind	AS	7	Statement	of	Cash	Flows:	Disclosure	Initiative	
		
The	 amendments	 require	 entities	 to	 provide	 disclosure	 of	 changes	 in	 their	 liabilities	 arising	 from	 financing	 activities,	
including	both	changes	arising	from	cash	flows	and	non-cash	changes.	The	Company	has	provided	the	information	for	both	
the	current	and	the	comparative	period	in	Note	10.	
	
Amendments	to	Ind	AS	102	Classification	and	Measurement	of	Share-based	Payment	Transactions	
	
The	amendments	to	Ind	AS	102	Share-based	Payment	addresses	three	main	areas:	the	effects	of	vesting	conditions	on	the	
measurement	of	a	cash-settled	share-based	payment	transaction;	the	classification	of	a	share-based	payment	transaction	
with	net	settlement	features	for	withholding	tax	obligations;	and	accounting	where	a	modification	to	the	terms	and	conditions	
of	a	share-based	payment	transaction	changes	its	classification	from	cash	settled	to	equity	settled.		
	
On	adoption,	entities	are	required	to	apply	the	amendments	without	restating	prior	periods,	but	retrospective	application	is	
permitted	if	elected	for	all	three	amendments	and	other	criteria	are	met.	The	Company	applied	these	amendments	without	
restating	prior	periods.	However,	their	application	has	no	effect	on	the	Company’s	financial	position	and	performance	as	the	
Company	had	no	such	transaction.	
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Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note	3:	Significant	accounting	policies	(continued)	
	
Indian	Accounting	Standard	(“Ind	AS”)	issued	but	not	effective	
	
On	March	28,	2018,	the	Ministry	of	Corporate	Affairs	(MCA)	has	notified	Ind	AS	115	-	Revenue	from	Contract	with	Customers	
and	certain	amendment	to	existing	Ind	AS.	These	amendments	shall	be	applicable	to	the	Company	from	April	01,	2018.	
	
(a)	Issue	of	Ind	AS	115	-	Revenue	from	Contracts	with	Customers	
	
Ind	AS	115	will	supersede	the	current	revenue	recognition	guidance	including	Ind	AS	18	Revenue,	Ind	AS	11	Construction	
Contracts	 and	 the	 related	 interpretations.	 Ind	AS	 115	 provides	 a	 single	model	 of	accounting	 for	 revenue	 arising	 from	
contracts	with	customers	based	on	the	identification	and	satisfaction	of	performance	obligations.	The	Company	principally	
satisfies	 its	performance	obligation	 at	a	point	 in	 time	 and	 the	 amounts	of	 revenue	 recognized	 relating	 to	performance	
obligation	satisfied	over	time	are	not	significant.	The	accounting	for	revenue	under	Ind	AS	115	does	not,	therefore,	represent	
a	substantive	change	from	the	Company's	current	practice	of	recognising	revenue	from	sale	to	customers.	
	
(b)	Amendment	to	Existing	issued	Ind	AS	
	
The	MCA	has	also	carried	out	amendments	of	the	following	accounting	standards:	
Ind	AS	12	-	Income	Taxes	
	
Application	of	above	standards	are	not	expected	to	have	any	significant	impact	on	the	Company’s	financial	statements.	
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Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

4 Property, plant and equipment
INR in lakhs

Description of Assets Plant and 

Machinery

Furniture & 

Fixtures

Vehicles Office Equipment Computers  Total 

I. Cost

Balance as at April 1, 2016 683                                 58                                    1                                      29                                    25                                    796                                 

Additions 36                                    1                                                                           -   3                                                                           -   40                                    

Disposals 22                                                                         -                                        -                                        -                                        -   22                                    

Balance as at March 31, 2017                                  697                                    59                                       1                                    32                                    25 814                                 

II.  Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2016 483                                 34                                    1                                      28                                    24                                    570                                 

Charge for the year 57                                    5                                                                           -   1                                      1                                      64                                    

Disposals 16                                                                         -                                        -                                        -                                        -   16                                    

Balance as at March 31, 2017                                  524                                    39                                       1                                    29                                    25                                  618 

Net book value  (I-II)

Balance as on March 31, 2017 173                                 20                                                                        -   3                                      -                                  196                                 

INR in lakhs

Description of Assets
Plant and 

Machinery

Furniture & 

Fixtures

Vehicles Office Equipment Computers  Total 

I. Cost

Balance as at April 1, 2017                                  697                                     59                                       1                                     32                                     25                                  814 
Additions                                     31                                      -                                        -                                         7                                      -                                       38 
Disposals                                     71                                      -                                        -                                       14                                     17                                  102 
Balance as at March 31, 2018                                  657                                    59                                       1                                    25                                       8                                  750 

II.  Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2017                                  524                                     39                                       1                                     29                                     25                                  618 
Charge for the year                                     66                                     11                                      -                                         3                                      -                                       80 
Disposals                                     69                                      -                                        -                                       14                                     17                                  100 

Balance as at March 31, 2018                                  521                                    50                                       1                                    18                                       8                                  598 

Net book value  (I-II)

Balance as on March 31, 2018 136                                 9                                                                           -   7                                                                           -   152                                 

4.1 Capital work in progress (CWIP)

It consists of amount pertaining to installation of CC TV Rs. Nil (March 31, 2017: Rs. 4 lakhs) and has been capitalised during the year.



Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

5      Investments

INR in lakhs

Current  Non-Current Current  Non-Current 

Investment in equity instruments (quoted)*                                 2,250                                          3                                         -                                   2,250                                          3                                         -   
Total quoted investments                                2,250                                         3                                         -                                  2,250                                         3                                         -   

* Represents investments in equity shares of Karnataka Bank Limited.

6      Other financial assets (unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

INR in lakhs

 Current  Non-Current  Total  Current  Non-Current  Total 

 Considered good 

 Amount recoverable from related parties *                                         -                                           -                                           -                                            7                                         -                                            7 

 Deposits with government authorities                                         -                                            4                                          4                                         -                                            3                                          3 

 Total                                         -                                           4                                         4                                         7                                         3                                       10 

*Includes dues from related parties. See note 32.

7      Other assets (unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

INR in lakhs

 Current  Non-Current  Total  Current  Non-Current  Total 
Capital advances                                         -                                           -                                           -                                           -                                            8                                          8 

 Balances with government authorities                                          3                                         -                                            3                                       19                                         -                                         19 

 Advance recoverable in kind                                          1                                         -                                            1                                          2                                         -                                            2 

 Staff advances                                         -                                           -                                           -                                            1                                         -                                            1 
Total                                         4                                         -                                           4                                       22                                         8                                       30 

 Investments at fair value through P&L  As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2017 

Quantity (Nos.)
 Amount 

Quantity (Nos.)
 Amount 

 Particulars  As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2017 

 Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

 (This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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8 Inventories (valued lower of cost and net realisable value)
INR in lakhs

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Raw materials and packing materials                                                       -                                                     121 

Finished goods                                                       -                                                          8 

Total                                                       -                                                     129 

9 Trade receivables
INR in lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2017 

Unsecured, current, considered good 42 1 
Less:- Allowance for expected credit loss                                                       -                                                         -   

Unsecured, current, considered doubtful 4 4 
Less:- Allowance for expected credit loss                                                      (4)                                                      (4)

Total                                                     42                                                        1 

10 Cash and cash equivalents

INR in lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2017 

Balances with banks 
 - On current account (March 31, 2018: Rs. 3,818)* 0                                                      14 
Total                                                       -                                                       14 

*Represents the figures below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following :
INR in lakhs

Particulars  As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2017 

Balances with banks 
 - On current account 0                                                      14 
Cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement                                                       -                                                       14 

Changes in liabilities due to financing activities

Particulars Current borrowings  Non-current 
borrowings 

As at April 1, 2017 -                                                   98                                                     
Cash flows 104                                                  -                                                   
Change in fair value of financial instruments -                                                   13                                                     
As at March 31, 2018 104                                                  111                                                  

Particulars Current borrowings  Non-current 
borrowings 

As at April 1, 2016 175                                                  87                                                     
Converted to equity shares (refer note 13) (175) -                                                   
Change in fair value of financial instruments -                                                   11                                                     
As at March 31, 2017 -                                                   98                                                    

Breakup of financial assets carried at amortised cost

INR in lakhs

Particulars  As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2017 

Other financial assets (Refer note 6)                                                        4                                                      10 

Trade receivables (Refer note 9)                                                      42                                                        1 

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 10) 0                                                      14 
 Total                                                      46                                                      25 

Inventories as stated above are net of provision for old and slow moving inventories amounting to Rs. Nil (March 31, 2017: Rs. 1 lakh).

The Company's  exposure to credit risk and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 31.

Pursuant to the agreement for conducting business with Galaxy Entertainment Corporation Limited, the Company has sold its inventory as
on December 31, 2017 to Galaxy Entertainment Corporation Limited. For details refer note 1.

For trade receivable owed by related parties, refer to note 32.
No trade or other receivable is due from director or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.



Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

11 Equity share capital

INR in lakhs

As at 

March 31, 2018

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

Equity share capital                              14                              14 

Total                             14                             14 

Authorised Share Capital:

142,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2017 : 142,000 shares) 14                             14                             

1,000,000 0.01% Redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of Rs. 100 each (March 31, 2017 : 1,000,000 shares) 1,000                       1,000                       

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares comprises: INR in lakhs

141,429 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2017 : 141,429 shares ) 14                             14                             

Total 14                            14                            

11.1

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited (Holding Company) 119,829                  84.73% 119,829                  84.73%

Future Consumer Limited (Ultimate Holding Company) 21,600                    15.27% 21,600                    15.27%

11.2 Terms / rights attached to equity shares

11.3 Terms / rights attached to preference shares

11.4  Fully paid equity shares - reconciliation

Balance at March 31, 2016 90,000

51,429

Balance at March 31, 2017 141,429

                                   -   

Balance at March 31, 2018 141,429

11.5 Equity component of 0.01% redeemable non-cumulative preference shares

Balance at March 31, 2016 1,000,000 917

-                                                              -   

Balance at March 31, 2017 1,000,000 917

-                                                              -   

Balance at March 31, 2018 1,000,000 917

11.6

Allotment of equity shares  during 2016-17

By way of a Board resolution dated March 31, 2017, 51,429 equity shares have been allotted as fully paid-up to the Holding Company. Out of this allotment

18,000 equity shares were issued by converting short term loan amounting to Rs. 175 lakhs. Also refer notes 12 & 13.

Allotment of equity shares  during 2017-18

Number of sharesParticulars

 As at March 31, 2017 

Particulars
Number of 

shares

Amount in lakhs

Issued during the year

Issued during the year

Particulars

The authorized capital of the Company includes 1,000,000 0.01% redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each. The preference shares do

not carry any voting rights except in case of class meetings of preference shareholders. Preference shares are redeemable at par on or before the expiry of

20 years from the date of allotment as may be mutually agreed among the preference shareholder and the Company.

Details of shares in respect of equity shares of the Company held by its Holding or Ultimate Holding Company or their subsidiaries or associates

in aggregate  and shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares.

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividend and share in the Company's residual

assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder are in proportion to its

share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of

all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Note: 1,000,000 0.01% Redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of Rs. 100 each (total face value of Rs. 1,000 lakhs) have been classified between

financial liability and other equity. Refer note 12, 13 and 11.5.

Particulars As at March 31, 2018

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date



Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

12 Other equity

INR in lakhs

  As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017  

                          917                           917 

Securities premium reserve (ii)                           495                           495 

Retained earnings                     (1,650)                     (1,491)

Employee Stock Options outstanding (iii)                              40                              18 

                       (198)                          (61)

12.1 Description of reserves

(i) Equity component of compound financial instruments

(ii) Securities premium reserve

(iii) Employee Stock Options outstanding

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Where the Company issued shares at a premium, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premium received on shares shall be transferred to a

“Securities Premium Reserve” as per the provisions of applicable Companies Act. By way of a Board resolution dated March 31, 2017, 51,429 equity shares

have been allotted as fully paid-up to the Holding Company. Out of this allotment 18,000 equity shares were issued by converting short term loan

amounting to Rs. 175 lakhs. The Company has issued 51,429 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 962.2 per equity share. Also refer notes 11

and 13.

Particulars

Equity component of compound financial instruments (i)

Total

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value. The equity component is initially recognised at the

difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.

Subsequent to initial recognition the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Compound financial instruments of the Company comprise 0.01% Redeemable non-cumulative preference shares.

The Company has a share option scheme under which options to subscribe for the Ultimate Holding Company’s shares have been granted to certain

employees of the Company.

The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to employees, including key

management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 33 for further details of these plans. This represents the fair value impact of share 
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13 Borrowings

INR in lakhs

Current  Non-Current Total Current Non-Current Total

Unsecured - at amortised cost

Loan from related party  (refer note i)                                104                                    -                                  104                                    -                                      -                                      -   

Liability component of compound financial 

instruments (refer note ii)

- Preference shares                                    -                                  111                                111                                    -                                     98                                   98 
Total borrowings                                104                                111                                215                                    -                                     98                                   98 

13.1 Summary of borrowing arrangements

(i)

(ii)

14 Provisions

INR in lakhs

Current  Non-Current Total Current  Non-Current Total

Employee benefits

- Provision for compensated absences*                                    -                                      -                                      -                                       1                                     5                                     6 
- Provision for gratuity (refer note 29)*                                    -                                      -                                      -                                       8                                   15                                   23 
Total                                    -                                      -                                      -                                       9                                   20                                   29 

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

*Pursuant to the business conduct agreement with Galaxy Entertainment Corporation Limited, the Company has transferred its employees and employee related obligations as on

December 31, 2017 to Galaxy Entertainment Corporation Limited. For details refer note 1.

 Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured

Interest rate : 12.50% p.a. (March 31, 2017: NIL)

Maturity : Repayable on demand.

Lendor : The Nilgiris Dairy Farm Private Limited (Holding Company).

Compound financial instrument of Company comprise of 0.01% Redeemable non-cumulative preference shares having effective interest rate of 12.6%. The equity portion has been

recorded under other equity. Also refer note 12.

 Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
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15 Other financial liabilities

INR in lakhs

Current Non-Current Total Current Non-Current Total

Accrued expenses 29                                    -                                     29 27                                    -                                     27 

Salaries & wages payable 15                                    -                                     15 32                                    -                                     32 

Deposits received 1 11                                   12 1                                    -                                       1 

Stale cheque liabilities 10                                    -                                     10 4                                    -                                       4 

Book overdraft 16                                    -                                     16 34                                    -                                     34 

Other payables (refer note 29) 65                                    -                                     65 5                                    -                                       5 
Total                               136                                  11                               147                               103                                    -                                 103 

16 Trade payables

INR in lakhs

Particulars  As at March 31,  

2018 

 As at March 31,  

2017  

                                  10                                188 

Total                                  10                               188 

*Includes dues to related parties. Refer note 32.

Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises

17 Other liabilities

INR in lakhs

Current  Non-Current Total  Current  Non-Current Total

Statutory due payable                                     2                                       -                                       2                                   17                                    -                                     17 

Deferred lease income                                     2                                   17                                   19                                    -                                      -                                      -   

Advance from customers                                     1                                       -                                       1                                    -                                      -                                         -   

Total                                     5                                  17                                  22                                  17                                    -                                    17 

Breakup of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

INR in lakhs
Particulars

Borrowings (Refer note 13)

Other financial liabilities (Refer note 15)

Trade payables (Refer note 16)

 Total 

As at March 31, 2017

Trade payables*

Based on the information available with the Company there are no suppliers who are registered as micro, small and medium enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.

 Particulars As at March 31, 2018

 Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

389                                                                        

 As at March 31, 2018 

                                                                         215 

                                                                         147 

                                                                           10 
372                                                                        

 As at March 31, 2017 

                                                                           98 

                                                                         103 

                                                                         188 
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18 Revenue from operations

INR in lakhs

For the year ended  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Sale of products (including excise duty of Rs. 11 lakhs for year ended March 31, 2018, 

(March 31, 2017: Rs. 67 lakhs))

                                        1,388                                         1,823 

Royalty Income* 45                                              -                                             

                                       1,433                                        1,823 

Includes revenue from related parties. Refer note 32.

19 Other income

INR in lakhs

For the year ended  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Rental income

-Lease rental income on amortization of lease deposits                                                  1                                                 -   

Other non-operating income

-Fair value changes in equity instrument                                                 -                                                    1 

-Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment                                                 -                                                    1 

-Miscellaneous income                                                  4                                                  4 

Total                                                  5                                                  6 

20 Cost of raw material and components consumed

INR in lakhs

For the year ended  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Inventory at the beginning of the year                                             120                                               97 

Add: Purchases                                             784                                         1,182 

                                            904                                         1,279 

Less: Inventory at the end of the year                                                   -                                          (120)

                                           904                                        1,159 

21 Changes in inventory of finished goods

INR in lakhs

For the year ended  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Manufactured goods

Opening inventory                                                  8                                               16 

Closing inventory                                                     -                                                 (8)

Decrease in inventory                                                  8                                                  8 

22 Employee benefits expense

INR in lakhs

For the year ended  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Salaries, wages and bonus                                             202                                             248 

Contribution to provident and other funds                                               23                                               25 

Gratuity expense (refer note 29)                                                  6                                                  7 

Share-based payments (Refer note 33)                                               22                                               18 

Staff welfare expenses                                               10                                               12 

Total                                            263                                            310 

Note : Sale of goods includes excise duty collected from customers of Rs. 11 lakhs (March 31, 2017: Rs. 67 lakh). Sale of goods net of excise duty 

is Rs. 1,377 lakhs (March 31, 2017: Rs. 1,756 lakhs). Revenue from operations up to June 30, 2017 includes excise duty. From 1 July 2017

onwards the excise duty and most indirect taxes in India have been replaced with Goods and Service Tax (GST). The Company collects GST on

behalf of the Government. Hence, GST is not included in Revenue from operations.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

* Royalty income is a payment received for utilizing the resources comprising of the fixed and current assets, labour and other infrastructural

facilities of the Company. Refer note 1.
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23 Depreciation expense

INR in lakhs

For the year ended  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment                                               80                                               64 

Total                                               80                                               64 

24 Finance costs

INR in lakhs

For the year ended  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Interest on loan from related parties (see note 32)                                                  1                                               33 

Finance cost on compound financial instrument                                               13                                                 -   

Total                                               14                                               33 

25 Other expenses

INR in lakhs

For the year ended  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Labour contract charges                                               87                                             124 

Power and fuel                                               80                                               85 

Repair and maintenance

  Buildings                                                  3                                               14 

  Plant and machinery                                               32                                               42 

  Others                                                  4                                               11 

Rates and taxes                                               32                                               21 

Rent (refer note 32 and 35)                                               18                                               18 

Legal and professional fees                                                  9                                               18 

Consumption of stores and spares                                                  9                                                  6 

Security charges                                                 -                                                    6 

Miscellaneous expenses                                                  1                                                  4 

Selling, distribution and marketing expenses                                                 -                                                    3 

Payment to auditors (Refer details below)                                                  3                                                  3 

Printing and stationery                                                  1                                                  2 

Communication cost                                                  1                                                  2 

Directors' sitting fee                                                  2                                                  2 

Allowance for expected credit loss                                                 -                                                    2 

Travelling expenses                                                 -                                                    2 

Insurance                                                  1                                                  1 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment                                                  2                                                 -   

Fair value changes in equity instrument                                                  1                                                 -   

Total                                            286                                            366 

Payment to auditors

INR in lakhs

Particulars  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Statutory audit fee                                                  3                                                  3 

                                                 3                                                  3 

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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26 Income taxes relating to continuing operations

26.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss 
INR in lakhs

For the year ended March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 
Current tax
In respect of the current year -                                 -                                 

-                                -                                
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year -                               -                                 

-                              -                                
Total income tax expense recognized in the current year 
relating to continuing operations -                                -                                

26.2 Income tax recognized directly in equity
No income tax expenses were directly recognised in equity by the Company during  the current year.

26.3 Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income
No income tax expenses were recognised under other comprehensive income during  the current year.

26.4

INR in lakhs
As at March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Income tax assets 5                                     1                                     

5                                    1                                    

INR in lakhs
As at March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Tax deducted at source 5                                     1                                     

5                                    1                                    

27 Components of Other comprehensive income 
INR in lakhs

 March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

                                (31)                                   (5)
                                    -                                       -   

                               (31)                                  (5)

28 Earnings per share (EPS)

28.1 The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

                             (128)                              (178)
Net loss for calculation of basic EPS                             (128)                             (178)

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS (Nos.)
Opening balance (Nos.)                        141,429                           90,000 
Effect of fresh issue of shares (Nos.)                                     -                                   141 

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS (Nos.)                       141,429                         90,141 

                               (91)                             (197)

28.2

The following table provides the detail of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017:

Break-up of income tax asset for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are as follows:

The Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares and therefore diluted earnings per share is the same as basic
earnings per share.

For the year ended

For the year ended

Total

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or
loss

Loss attributable to the equity shareholders (Rs. in lakhs)

EPS (in Rs.)

For the purpose of EPS computation for the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has computed the weighted average of
equity shares issued as at March 31, 2017. Also refer note 11.6
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29 Employee benefit plans

29.1 Defined contribution plan

29.2 Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

Risk exposure to defined benefit plans

Longevity risk

Salary risk

Principal assumptions

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Assumptions
As at 

March 31, 2018

As at 

March 31, 2017

1. Discount rate 7.30% 6.85%

2. Salary escalation 6.00% 6.00%

3. Attrition rate 12.00% 12.00%

4. Mortality rate (IALM 2006-08) 

Ultimate

(IALM 2006-08) 

Ultimate

5. Retirement age 58 years 58 years

4. Expected rate of return on assets 6.26% 7.73%

Balances of defined benefit plan

INR in lakhs

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2018

As at 

March 31, 2017

Present value of defined benefit obligation 85                                          51                                          

Fair value of plan assets (31)                                       (29)                                       

Less:Transferred persuant to conducting of business agreement 54                                                                                      -   

Net liability arising from gratuity                                             -   22                                          

The Company's contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund and employee state insurance are determined under the relevant schemes

and / or statute and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company's contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund for the year March 31, 2018 aggregating to Rs. 23 lakhs (March 31,

2017: Rs. 25 lakhs) has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss under the head employee benefits expense.

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is the greater of the amount calculated as per the

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme applicable to the employee. The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous

service and once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. The gratuity benefits payable to the

employees are based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The employees do not contribute towards this plan

and the full cost of providing these benefits are met by the Company. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of

vesting. 

The Company does not make annual contribution to the gratuity scheme. The liability in respect of plan is determined on the basis of an

actuarial valuation.

The plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both

during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in

the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at December 31,

2017. The present value of the defined benefit obligations, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the

projected unit credit method.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Effective January 1, 2018 , the Company entered into an agreement for conducting business with Galaxy Entertainment Corporation Limited

(GECL), pursuant to which the Company has transferred the operations to GECL (refer note 1). As per the agreement on the closing of business

hours of December 31, 2017 all obligations and liabilities in respect of the manpower employed at the premises shall be assumed by GECL and

the Company shall stand discharged towards the same. Hence, the Company has performed the valuation of liability as on December 31, 2017

and has disclosed the same under Other financial liabilities as "Other payables".

Investment risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of

instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide

fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period

Market risk

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. The discount rate reflects the

time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This

assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the

yields as at the valuation date.
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29 Employee benefit plans (continued)

29.2 Defined benefit plans (continued)

Expenses recognised for defined benefit plan and movement of plan assets and liabilities

INR in lakhs

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

                                             5                                              4 

Interest expense on defined benefit obligation                                              4                                              5 

Interest (income) on plan assets                                           (3)                                           (2)

                                            6                                             7 

                                          (2)                                              2 

                                          33                                              3 

31                                             5 

51 44 

5 4 

4 3 

                                          (2) 2 

                                          33 3 

                                          (6)                                           (5)

85                                           51 

29 27 

2 2 

Contributions 6 5 

                                          (6)                                           (5)

31                                           29 

A. Components of expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Following is the amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss, other comprehensive income, movement in defined benefit liability (i.e.

gratuity) and movement in plan assets:

As at and for the year ended
Particulars

Current service cost 

Total (A)

B. Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other comprehensive income

C. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions

-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from experience adjustments

Total (B)

Interest income 

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Interest cost

Remeasurement (gains)/losses:

-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions

-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from experience adjustments

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation (C) 

D. Movements in the fair value of the plan assets

Opening fair value of plan assets 

Benefits paid

Closing fair value of plan assets (D)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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29 Employee benefit plans (continued)

29.2 Defined benefit plans (continued)

Category wise plan assets

The fair value of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows:

INR in lakhs

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2018

As at 

March 31, 2017

Life Insurance Corporation                                           31                                           29 

The above plan assets are unquoted instruments. 

Sensitivity analysis:

INR in lakhs

Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit liability
As at 

March 31, 2018

As at 

March 31, 2017

Impact in defined benefit obligation of gratuity by 100 basis points

increase in discount rate 

                                          82                                           49 

Impact in defined benefit obligation of gratuity by 100 basis points

decrease in discount rate 

                                          89                                           54 

Impact in defined benefit obligation of gratuity by 100 basis points

increase in salary escalation rate 

                                          89                                           54 

Impact in defined benefit obligation of gratuity by 100 basis points

decrease in salary escalation rate 

                                          82                                           49 

The expected contributions to the defined benefit plan for the next annual reporting period is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2017: Rs. 8 lakhs)

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the

projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation

liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from previous years.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity

analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting

period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the

change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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30 Capital Management

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.

INR in lakhs

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Debt (refer note 13)                           215                              98 

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10)                               -                             (14)

Net debt                           215                              84 

                        (184)                           (47)

687% 225%

31 Financial instruments and risk management

31.1 Categories of financial instruments and fair value hierarchy

INR in lakhs

March 31, 2018 FVTPL

Other financial 

assets - 

amortised cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at fair value                                3                               -                                  3                               -                                 -   

                               3                               -   

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

– Cash and bank balances (note 10)                               -   0                               -                                 -                                 -   

– Trade receivables (note 9)                               -                                42                               -                                 -                                42 

– Other financial assets (note 6)                               -                                  4                               -                                 -                                  4 

                              -                                46 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

– Borrowings (note 13)                               -                             104                               -                                 -                             104 

– Preference shares (note 13)                               -                             111                               -                             111                               -   

– Trade payables (note 16)                               -                                10                               -                                 -                                10 

– Other financial liabilities (note 15)                               -                             147                               -                                 -                             147 

                              -                             372 

The Company manages its capital to ensure that Company will be able to continue as going concern while minimizing loss to stakeholders through the

optimization of the debt and equity balance. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment in light of changes in economic conditions or business requirements. The Company

monitors capital using a gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as shown below                                       

 -  Net debt includes borrowings (long term and short term) less cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13 and 10) and

 - Total equity comprises of issued share capital and all other equity components attributable to equity share holders (refer note 11 and 12).

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The CFO of the Holding Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the CFO considers the cost

of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The gearing ratio at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are as follows.

Carrying amount Fair value

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and March 31,

2017:

As at

Equity (refer note 11 and 12)

Net debt to equity ratio

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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31

31.1 Categories of financial instruments (continued)

INR in lakhs

March 31, 2017 FVTPL

Other financial 

assets - 

amortised cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at fair value 3                               -   3                               -                                 -   

                               3                               -   

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

– Cash and bank balances (note 10)                               -                                14                               -                                 -                                14 

– Trade receivables (note 9)                               -                                  1                               -                                 -                                  1 

– Other financial assets (note 6)                               -                                10                               -                                 -                                10 

                              -                                25 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

– Preference shares (note 13)                               -                                98                               -                                98                               -   

– Trade payables (note 16)                               -                             188                               -                                 -                             188 

– Other financial liabilities (note 15)                               -                             103                               -                                 -                             103 

                              -                             389 

Carrying amount Fair value

At the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentrations of credit risk for financial assets measured at FVTPL. The carrying amount

reflected above represents the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for such financial assets.

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period.

Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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31

31.2 Financial risk management objectives

31.3 Market Risks

31.4 Interest rate risk

 INR in lakhs 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2018

As at 

31 March 2017

Fixed rate borrowings                           215                              98 

Total borrowings                          215                             98 

31.5

31.6

Currency risk

The Company has not entered into foreign currency transactions for the period covered by these financial statements. Accordingly the Company has no

exposure to foreign exchange gain and losses on its financial position, performance and cash flows.

Other price risks

The Company is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments. Equity investments are held for non-trading purposes. The Company

does not actively trade these investments.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities

is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets comprises of trade and other receivables, and cash and cash

equivalents that are derived directly from its operations.    

The Company’s everyday activities expose it to market risk (which covers mostly interest rate risks), credit risk and liquidity risk. The objective of

financial risk management in the Company is to minimize the impact of market factors mainly interest rates. 

 

Financial risk is closely monitored by the CFO of the Holding Company as well as centralized treasury team of the Ultimate Holding Company and critical

developments if any, are updated to the CFO of the Ultimate Holding Company and the Board.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices. The

Company is exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to interest rates and equity price.

Interest rate risk exposure

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk because the Company has not borrowed funds at floating interest rates. 

Interest rate risk management: 

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk as the Company borrows funds at fixed interest rates.

The Company's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company's borrowing comprises loan from the Holding company and debt portion of compound financial instrument which carries a fixed rate of

interest, which do not expose it to interest rate risk. 

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting period:

If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower, loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 would decrease/increase by Rs. 0.13 lakhs (for period ended March

31, 2017: decrease/increase by Rs. 0.15 lakhs) as a result of the changes in fair value of shares measured at FVTPL. 
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31.7 Credit risk

Ageing Expected credit 

loss (%)

Within credit period 0%

1-90 days past dues 0%

91-120 days past dues 10%

121-150 days past dues 25%

151-180 days past dues 50%

More than 180 days past dues 100%

Age of receivables INR in lakhs

Ageing
As at March 31, 

2018

As at March 31, 

2017

                               4                               -   

                              -                                  1 

                             16                               -   

                             26                                4 

Gross total                             46                                5 

Allowance for expected credit loss                              (4)                              (4)

Net trade receivables                             42                                1 

Movement in the credit loss allowance

INR in lakhs

 March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017 

4                               1                               

                              -   3                              

                               4                                4 

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements 

The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets. 

Exposures to credit risk: 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises

from deposits and balance with banks and financial institutions, as well as from credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables.

Credit risk management:

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. Detailed KYC documentation is done before the transaction is done

with the customers. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved annually. Ongoing credit evaluation is

performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable. Also periodic reconciliation is being done with the customers. The Company does not have

significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty. 

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. 

Balance at the beginning of the year

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The

provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experienced and adjusted for forward- looking information. The expected credit loss allowance

is based on ageing of the days, the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting

period is as follows:

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

The average credit period on sales of goods is 0 to 30 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables. 

Particulars

Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

- 0 to 30 days

- 31 to 90 days

- 91 to 120 days

Net movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivable 

calculated at lifetime expected credit losses

Balance at the end of the year

- more than 120 days
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31.8 Liquidity risk

Liquidity and interest risk tables

INR in lakhs

Particulars

Weighted 

average 

effective 

interest rate

Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Total
Carrying 

amount

As at March 31, 2018

Loan from the Holding Company 12.50%                           117                               -                             117                           104 

As at March 31, 2017

Loan from the Holding Company                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -   

Particulars Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2018                              45                                4                              49 

As at March 31, 2017                              25                                3                              28 

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management

framework for the management of the Company's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company

manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash

flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have

been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The

tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to

pay:

12.50%

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for both financial assets and liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable

interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

The following table details the Company's expected maturity for its financial assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is

necessary in order to understand the Company's liquidity risk management.

Weighted average 

effective interest rate

12.50%

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by

delivering cash or another financial asset. 

Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
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32 Related party transactions

32.1 Names of related parties where control exists:

The Ultimate Holding Company Future Consumer Limited 

The Holding Company The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

32.2 Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year :

i) Fellow subsidiaries

Appu Nutritions Private Limited

Sublime Foods Private Limited

ii) Key management personnel

Director Ashok Kumar Matolia

Director Manoj Prataprai Gagvani

Director Seshadri Gopalan

Director Samir Kedia
Director Sailesh Raj Kedawat

Director Reenah Joseph Simon

32.3 Transactions entered into with related parties during the year and balances as at the year end are as follows:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Sales of goods by the Company

                                1,386                                 1,754 

                                        -                                            1 

Sublime Food Private Limited                                         -                                            1 
-                                     -                                     Purchase of goods by the Company

                                      31                                       54 

                                         1                                         -   

Future Consumer Limited                                         -                                         12 

-                                     -                                     

17                                                                            17 
-                                     -                                     

                                        -                                         76 

                                      19                                         -   
-                                     

                                      16                                         -   
-                                     -                                     

                                    104                                         -   
-                                     -                                     

                                        -                                       175 

-                                                                             -   

                                        -                                       500 
-                                     -                                     

                                      14 33                                      

Nilgiris Franchise Private Limited

Appu Nutritions Private Limited

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

Appu Nutritions Private Limited

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

Recovery of expenses from the Company

Recovery of expenses by the Company

Appu Nutritions Private Limited

ICD loan received

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

Transaction for the year ended

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

Amount in lakhs

Interest on loan

Rent expense incurred by the Company

Appu Nutritions Private Limited

Appu Nutritions Private Limited

Loan converted into preference shares / equity shares

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

Issue of preference share / equity shares

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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INR in lakhs

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Trade and other payables

                                    111                                       98 

-                                     Loan payable

                                    104                                         -   

Trade receivable

                                      21                                         -   

Appu Nutritions Private Limited                                       20                                          6 

Other related party                                         -                                            1 

INR in lakhs
32.4

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Share-based payment                                       22                                       18 

INR in lakhs
32.5

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Director sitting fees 2                                          2 

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

Transactions with key managerial personnel For the year ended

Compensation to key managerial personnel For the year ended

Balances Outstanding as at

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

All the related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. All the

related party transactions are placed before the Board of Directors for review and approval.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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33 Share based payments

33.1

Option scheme Number of 
Options 
Granted 

Grant date Expiry date Exercise price 
(Rs.)

Share Price at 
Grant date 

(Rs.)

Fair value at 
grant date 

(Rs.) 

ESOP 2014-Primary 495,000            12-Aug-16 Note-1 below 21.40                  21.50 21.40

33.2

Inputs into the model

Expected volatility (%)
Option life (Years)
Dividend yield (%)

Risk-free interest rate (Average)

33.3 Movement in share options during the year

Number of 
options

Number of 
options

Balance at beginning of year             495,000 21.40                          -                            -   
Granted during the year                          -                            -               495,000                  21.40 
Forfeited during the year                          -                            -                            -                            -   

Exercised during the year                15,000 21.40                          -                            -   
Expired during the year                          -                            -                            -                            -   
Balance at end of year             480,000 21.40             495,000                  21.40 

33.4 Share options exercised during the year

The following share options were exercised during the year:  

Options scheme Number Exercise date
ESOP 2014 Primary 15,000               10-Jan-18

33.5 Share options outstanding at the end of the year

33.6 The expense reconised for employee services received during the year is given below:
March 31, 2018March 31, 2017

Expense arising from equity settled share based payment transactions (refer note 22) 22 18

There were no modifications to the ESOP scheme.

Options were priced using a Black Scholes option pricing model. Expected volatility is based on the historical share price volatility over

the past 1 year: 

Details of the employee share based plan of the Company

The ESOP scheme titled “Future Consumer Enterprise Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2014” was approved by the Shareholders of

the Ultimate Holding Company "Future Consumer Limited" vide resolution passed at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on
January 12, 2015 and through postal ballot on May 12, 2015 in respect of grant of 31,950,000 options under primary route (ESOP 2014-
Primary) and 79,800,000 options under secondary market route (ESOP 2014-Secondary). ESOP 2014 has been implemented through a
trust route whereby Vistra ITCL India Limited (Formerly IL&FS Trust Company Limited) has been appointed as the Trustee who

monitors and administers the operations of the Trust.  

In the previous year, the Nomination and Remuneration / Compensation Committee of Future Consumer Limited, at its meeting held on

12th August,2016 has granted 495,000 options under the ESOP 2014-Primary to a Director of the Company under the ESOP 2014
Primary  route.

The following share-based payment arrangements were in existence during the current and prior years: 

Note-1 The options granted vest over a period of 3 years from the date of the grant in proportions specified in the Scheme. Options may
be exercised within 3 years from date of vesting. 

Note-2 Market price of the Equity Share of the Holding Company as on the date of grant of Option or the cost of acquisition of such
shares to the Company applying FIFO basis, whichever is higher.

The share options outstanding at the end of the year had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1,353 days (March 31,
2017:1,705 Days).

Share price at exercise date 
                                                 74.95 

ESOP 2014-Primary 

48.88%
4-6 years

0%

7.12% to 7.25%

The following reconciles the share options outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Weighted average exercise 
price (Rs.)

Weighted average exercise 
price (Rs.)
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34 Contingent liabilities

Statutory bonus:

35 Leasing arrangement

Company as lessee

36 Previous year comparatives

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to this year's classification.
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As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

ICAI firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U85110MH1988PTC265435

per Sunil Gaggar Ashok Kumar Matolia Seshadri Gopalan

Partner Director Director

Membership number: 104315 DIN: 01881881 DIN:06729585

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 09, 2018 Date: May 09, 2018 Date: May 09, 2018

Nimalan James

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 09, 2018

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 prepared in accordance with Ind AS

included in this Financial Statements is based on Financial Statements audited by predecessor auditor BSR & Associates LLP,

Chartered Accountants vide their report dated 25 May, 2017.

The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 passed on 31 December 2015 is effective retrospectively from 1 April 2014. However,

the Hon'ble High Courts in Kerala and Karnataka have granted stay orders for retrospective application of amendment for the year

2014-15 till the matter is adjudicated finally. The Company has considered these stay orders and not provided for a liability of Rs. 9

lakhs in its financial statements.

The Company has taken premises under cancellable operating leases which are renewable at the option of both the lessor and the

lessee. Total rental expenses under cancellable operating leases amount to Rs. 18 lakhs (previous year: Rs. 18 lakhs) for the year

ended March 31, 2018. The Company has not entered into any non-cancellable operating leases during the year.


